NISSAN

UD TRUCKS

() GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED



CONTENTS

02

03

04

07

08

12

13

14

15

16

17

45

52

53

Vision and Mission

Company Profile

Notice of the Meeting
Chairman’s Review

Directors” Report

Auditors’ Report tothe Members
Balance Sheet

Profit & Loss Account

Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Changes in Equity
Notes to the Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance

Auditors’ Review Report
Key Operating and Financial Data

Pattern of Shareholding

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED



VISION

To maximize market share by producing and marketing highest quality vehicles in
Pakistan.

MISSION

As a customer oriented Company, provide highest level of customer
satisfaction.

 To accelerate performance in all operating areas, ensuring growth of the

Company and increasing return to the stakeholders.

» To create a conducive working environment leading to enhanced productivity,

job satisfaction and personal development of the employees.

* To contribute to social welfare by adopting environment friendly practices

and processes for the well being of society.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 32" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Ghandhara Nissan Limited will be held on Tuesday, 28" October 2014 at 10:30

AM., at Ghandhara House 109/2, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following
business:
Ordinary Business:

- To confirm the minutes of the 31* Annual General Meeting held on 30"
October, 2013.
-  To receive, consider and approve the Audited Accounts of the Company for

the year ended 30" June, 2014 together with Directors’ and Auditors’
Reports thereon.

- To consider and approve the payment of final Cash Dividend. The Board of
Directors has recommended payment of final Cash Dividend of Rs.2/- per
share (20%) for the yearended 30 June, 2014.

- To appoint Auditors for the year ending 30™ June, 2015 and fix their
remuneration. The retiring Auditors, M/s. Hameed Chaudhri & Co,,
Chartered Accountants and M/s. Muniff Ziauddin & Co., Chartered
Accountants being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Special Business:

- To amend Article 86 of the Articles of Association of the Company to

enhance the Directors’ meeting fee from Rs.10,000/- to Rs.25,000/- and
pass the following special resolution:-

“Resolved that Directors’ meeting fee be and is hereby enhanced
from Rs.10,000/- to Rs.25,000/-.

Further resolved that Article 86 of the Articles of Association of the

Company be and is hereby amended to substitute the figure
‘Rs.10,000/-' by the figure ‘Rs.25,000/-" ¥

Astatement U/S 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 is annexed.

- Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
Karachi: AQIEL AMJAD GHANI
3" October, 2014 (COMPANY SECRETARY)
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NOTES:

. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24"
October, 2014 to 30" October, 2014 (both days inclusive).

. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is
entitled to cast his/her vote by proxy. Proxies must be deposited at the
Company’s Registered Office at Ghandhara House 109/2, Clifton, Karachi
not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

. Individual beneficial owners of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting must bring their participant ID and account/sub-account
numbers along with original CNIC or passport to verify his/her identity. In
case of Corporate entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of
Attorney with specimen signature of the nominees shall be produced
(unless submitted earlier) at the time of meeting.

. For appointing proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall
submit the proxy form as per above requirement alongwith participant ID
and account / sub-account number together with attested copy of their
CNIC or passport. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses
with their names, addresses and CNIC numbers. The proxy shall produce
his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of meeting. In case of
Corporate entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of Attorney
with specimen signature of the proxy shall be produced at the time of
meeting (unless submitted earlier) alongwith the proxy form.

Members should guote their Folio Number in all correspondence and at
the time of attending the Meeting.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide notifications
dated August 18, 2011 and July 05, 2012 made it mandatory that
dividend warrants should bear CNIC number of the registered members,
therefore, members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their
valid Computerized National Identity Cards to the Company are
requested to send the same at the earliest to enable the Company to
comply with relevant laws. Failure to provide the same would constrain
the Company to withhold dispatch of dividend warrants.
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7. As directed by SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2012 dated August 18, 2012,
we have already given opportunity to shareholders to authorize the
Company to directly credit in his/their bank account with cash dividend,
if any, declared by the Company in future. If you still wish that the cash
dividend, if declared by the Company be directly credited into your bank

account, instead of issuing a dividend warrant, please provide the
relevant details.

8. Shareholders are informed that Income Tax Ordinance 2001, as amended
by Finance Act, 2014, has prescribed 15% withholding tax on dividend
payment to non filers while filers of income tax returns will be liable to
withholding tax @10%. Shareholders are advised to provide their NTN to
Share Registrars of the Company for availing the benefit of withholding

tax rate applicable to filers.

9. Members are requested to notify any change in their address,
immediately to our Share Registrar’s Office — M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.)
Ltd., Ground Floor, State Life Bldg. No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi.

Statement U/S-160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 24" September, 2014 proposed to
enhance Directors’ Meeting Fee from Rs.10,000/- to Rs.25,000/-. The meeting fee
was last revised on 31% October, 2008.

It is therefore proposed to amend Article-86 of the Articles of Association of the
Company to substitute the figure “Rs.10,000/-" by the figure “Rs.25,000/-"

Shareholders’ approval is being sought to give effect to the proposed change, and it
is proposed to pass the following Special Resolution:-

“Resolved that Directors’ Meeting Fee be and is hereby enhanced from Rs.10,000/-
to Rs.25,000/-.

Further, resolved that Article-86 of the Articles of Association of the Company be
amended to substitute the figure ‘Rs.10,000/-" by the figure 'Rs.25,000/-."
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

| am grateful to Almighty Allah for the very encouraging results of your company for the year
ended 30" June, 2014.

Your Company has made a remarkable recovery and has attained an after tax profit of
Rs.173.93 million as against after tax profit of Rs.10.23 million bst year.

Company's Performance

The Company sold 380 units of UD trucks as compared to 226 units last year.Moreover 52 units
of Dongfeng vehicles were sold in commercial market which were imported in CBU condition.
During the year under review the contract assembly of 1628 units was undertaken as against
1,568 units last year.

Future Outlook

Dongfeng operations are commenced by Ghandhara DF (Pvt) Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ghandhara Nissan Ltd., and it will be in full swing henceforth. Keeping in view the
encouraging response from the market, Dongfeng vehicles will yield substantial revenues to
your company in days ahead.

| am pleased to state that in addition to normal business, received firm order for the sale of 500
UD Trucks. This will have a positive impact on the profitability of the company.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of Board of Directors and on my own behalf, | would like to express our thanks to
Nissan Motor Co. Japan, UD Trucks Corporation Japan (Formerly Nissan Diesel Motor Co.
Limited Japan), Dongfeng Commercial Vehicle Company, Dongfeng Automobile Company
Limited, the Management of Sigma Motors (Pvt.) Ltd., Ghandhara Industries Ltd., Shareholders,
Dealers and Vendors for their co-operation. | would also like to express my appreciation for the
sincere efforts of the workers, staff and executives of the Company.

| would also like to record our gratitude to our bankers for their cooperation and understanding
shown to us and we look forward to mutual beneficial business relationships.

Karachi RazaKuli Khan Khattak
Dated: 24"September, 2014 Chairman Board of Directors
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited
Accounts and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended 30" June 2014.

Financial Results

The financlal results for the year ended 30™ June 2014 are summarized below. The figures for
the year 2013 have been Re-stated, in compliance with IAS-19 (revised), IAS-27 and |AS-28.

Be-stated
2014 2013
(Rupees in thousands)
Profit before taxation 269,695 17,693
Taxation
Current (44,984) (3,314}
Prior year 64 192
Deferred (50,845) 1,663
(95,765) (7,459)
Profit after taxation 173,930 10,234
Other comprehensive Income (2,436) (3,282}
Total comprehensive Income 171,494 6,952
Accumulated profit
Brought forward 142,819 115,069
Incremental depreciation 20,062 20,798
162,881 135,867
Accumulated profit
Carried forward 334,375 142,819
EarningsPer Share 3.86 0.23

The Board of Directors have proposed a final cash dividend of 20% at Rs.2/- per share.
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Operating Results

The company earned a profit after tax of Rs.173.93 million, as against a profit after tax of
Rs.10.23 million in corresponding year.

This was possible due to increase in sales volume of UD vehicles, sale of Dongfeng vehicles in
CBU condition, favorable exchange rate movement and reduced finance cost.

Chairman's Review

The Review included in the Annual Report deals interalia with the performance of the
Company for the year ended 30" June 2014 and its future outlook. The Directors of the
Company endorse the contents of this Review,

Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

As required under the code of corporate governance, the Directors are pleased to confirm that:

= The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present its
state of affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

e Proper books of account of the company have been maintained;

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;

# |nternational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have
been adequately disclosed and explained;

o The system of the internal control i sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored;

s There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going
concern;

s Key operating and financial data of last six years has been included in the Annual
Report;
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¢ |nformation about taxes and levies s given in the respective notes to the Financial
Statements;

# Subsidiary Company:- The company has formed a wholly owned subsidiary by the name
of Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited (GDFPL). The purpose of establishing the company is to
exclusively undertake the CKD business of Dongfeng vehicles. During the year Company
has made investment of Rs.59.99 million in the equity of GDFPL

¢ The value of investments made by the staff retirement funds as per their respective

audited accounts are given below:

Value of investment Year ended
Provident Fund R5.50.30 million June 30, 2013

* No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, CFO,
Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children.

Meetings of Board

During the year 2013-14, four Board meetings were held. Attendance by each Director ks as
follows:

5.No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. RazaKuli Khan Khattak

Lt.Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Jamil A. Shah

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan (FCA)
Chaudhry Sher Muhammad

Mr. Muhammad Za

Syed Haroon Rashid

Mr. Larbi Hbil

DR NGO R WN
I U

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board Meetings.
Mr. LarbiHbil could not attend the Board meetings because of security reasons. Mr. Mushtaq
Ahmed Khan could not attend on medical grounds.
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Meetings of Audit Committee

During the year 2013-14, four Audit Committee meetings were held. Attendance by each
memberis as follows:

S.No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
1. Lt.Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 3
2. Chaudhry Sher Muhammad 4
ED Mr. Jamil A. Shah 4
4, Mr. Muhammad Zia 3

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board Audit
Committee Meetings.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Company met in April 2014. The
existing company policies related to Human Resource were provided to the members.

Holding Company

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited with 62.32% shares is the holding Company of Ghandhara Nissan
Limited.

Subsequent Events

No materal changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
taken place between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Volvo has globally acquired UD operations.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as on 30" June 2014 of the company is included in the Annual
Report.

Auditors

The present Auditors M/s Hameed Chaudhri & Co Chartered Accountants and M/s_ Muniff
Ziauddin & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire, and being eligible, offer themseles for
reappointment, The Board of Directors recommends their appointment.

For and on behalf of theBoard of Directors

Karachi:
. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
24"September, 2014 Chief Executive
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audted the annexed balance sheet of Ghandhara Nissan Limited as at June 30, 2014 and the related
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes In equity together with the notes forming
part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
whidh, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit

It is the resporsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal cortral, and
prepare and presant the above said statemants in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the

requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Ow responsibility is to express an opinion on these
stalements based on our audit.

We conduct our audht in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable In Pakistan These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the above said
stements are free of any material misstatement. An audht includes examining, on 2 test basls, evidence
supporting the amounts and disdosures in the above sald statements. An audit also indudes assessing the
accounting policles and significant estimates made by management as wel as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verfication, we mport that;

(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as reguired by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

{b) in our opinion:

)] the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and
are further in accordance with accounting polides corsistentdy applied except for the changes as
stated in note 5 with which we concur;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpase of the Company's business; and

(il the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objecs of the Company;

{c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expianations given t us, the balance
sheet, profit and loss aaccount, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the
notes forming part the reof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, ghve
the ifformation required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affalrs as at June 30, 2014 and of the profit, s cash

flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) iIn our oplnion, no zakat was deductible at source under the 2akat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII| of 1580).

HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACOOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Osman Hameed Chaudhri Mohammad Moin Khan
Karachi ; 24th September 2014 Karachl ; 24th September 2014
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS

Non cumrent assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intanglble assets

Long term investments

Long térm loans

Long term deposits

Current assots

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stodk-in-trade

Trade debts

Loansand advances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Short term imvestment
Taxation - net

Bank balances

Total assats

EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES

Share capital and resenves

Share capital

Share premium

Unappropriated profit

Total aquity

Surplus on revaluation of fixed sssets
Liabilities

Non current labiities

Liabilities against assets subject to finance ease

Long term de posits
Staff benafits
Defemred taxation

Current Babilities

Tradeand other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short term finances

Running fimances under mark-up arrangements

Current portion of long term financing

Current portion of [abilities against assets
subject to Anance lease

Total liabikties
Contingencles and commitments

Total equity and labilites

i

Eu-u-

B SEGREERER

EEER

BYEB

Tha annessd notes from 1 o 48 form an Integral part of these finandal satemeants.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Re-stated
Restated July 1,
014 2013 2012
—-Rupeesin '000 ————

1,764,038 1,326,108 1,382,669
118 i58 211
152,630 92,635 92,635

4864 1,223 .
8,031 5,709 7,726
1,929,681 1,426,833 1,483,241
/4,055 32268 35,980
692,474 295,470 565,196
395,583 305,183 246,889
25,541 17,214 13,534
1571 14,673 10,215
49,211 24,751 37,748

28,000 - -
96,070 48,630 11,894
148618 52,528 33452
1505273 780,717 555,318
3,434,954 2,217,550 2,438,559
450,025 450,025 450,025
&0,000 40,000 40,000
334375 142,819 115,089
824,400 632844 605,094
1,054,188 713,289 728,008
13,006 111 1115
9611 9,611 8,611
94,795 BAR.756 BL936
158,035 1.010 10,442
275,451 99,488 103,104
768,840 442,993 339,938
5178 13,776 21,043
448,861 134,592 406,131
54,380 179,419 150,738
- - 77.7m
3,656 1,148 6,725
180,915 771,929 1,002,353
1,556,366 871,417 1,105,457
3,434,954 2,217,550 2,438,559

Jamil A. Shah
Director

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Re-stated
2014 2013
Note -— Rupees in ‘000 —
Revenue 30 2,619,910 1,852,738
Cost of sales 31 (2,148821) (1,626,438)
Gross profit 471089 235,800
Distribution cost 32 (19,318) (18,562)
Administrative expenses 33 (124,565) (117,586)
Other incame 34 12,595 10,347
Other expenses a5 (19.988) {1,328)
Profit from operations 319913 98,271
Finance cost 36 (50,218) (B0,578)
Profit before taxation 269 595 17,693
Taxation a7 (95,765) {7.455)
Profit after taxation 1735930 10,234
Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not be redassified to Profit or Loss
Loss on re-measurement of staff retirement
benefit obligation (3536) {4.972)
Impact of deferred tax 1,200 1,680
(24386) {3.282)
Total comprehensive income 171494 6,952
——- Rupees ———
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 38 3.86 0.23

The amnexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these finandal statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A. Shah
Chiaf Executive Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT Re-sated

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 2014 2013
== Rupees in 000 —
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 269,695 17,693
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other ibems:
Depredation and amortisation 54,580 58222
interestincome {2,183) (1,125)
Finance cost 40,235 77,354
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {568) (1,046}
Exchange |oss 5,733 1,650
Provision for gratulty 10,482 9,963
Payable balances written back - {3,942)
Operating profit before working capltal changes T 377,574 158,769
{increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and lomse tools (11,787) 3,722
Stock-in-trade (397,004) 269,726
Trade debls {30,400) (58,234)
Loans and advances {8,327 {4,503)
Deposit and prepayments (1,048) (1,387)
Other receivables {23,7127) 9,926
(532,293) 215,190
Increase in trade and other payables 320,114 105,346
Cash generated from operations 165,795 483,305
Gratulty and mmpensated absences paid (8,079) (8.114)
Long term loans {3.641) -
Finance cost paid (48,833) (B4,621)
Taxes paid (92,360) (45,858)
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,882 44,712
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B
Fixed capital expenditure {7.859) (2.414)
Proceads from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,483 1,852
Interest income recelved 1,450 1125
Investment made in subsidiary (59,995) .
Short term investment (38,000) .
Long term deposits - net (1,322) 1,07
Net cash (used in) f genermted from investing activities (104,243) 1.580

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing - repaid - (77.778)
Lease finances - net {1,779) (6,580)
Short term finances - net 314,269 (271,539)
Running finances - net (125,039) 28,681
Net cash generated from / (used in}financing activites 187,451 (327,216)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 96,090 19,076
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 52,528 33,452
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 148,618 52,528

The amnexed notes from 1 to 48 farm an integral part of thesa financal statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

kem
credited Unappro-
:.:'H'; -y 'm directyin  priated Total
equity by an profit
Assodate
———=——————Rupees in 000
Balance as at July 1, 2012
-as previously reported 450,025 40,000 59,767 48,226 599,048
Effect of retrospective application
of changes in accounting polides
- note 5 (net of tax) - - |59,767) 65,843 6,076
Balance as atJuly 1, 2012 '
-as me-stated 450,025 40,000 - 115,069 805,099
Total comprehensive income
for the year ended June 30,
013
Prafit for the year - - - 10,734 10,234
Other comprehens ive loss - - - (3,282) (3,282)
: 5 - 6,952 6,952
Surplus on revaluation of fixed
assetsrealised during the year
(net of deferred taxation) on
account of incremental
depreciation - - - 20,798 20,798
Balance as at June 30, 2013
-as mstaEted 450,025 40,000 - 142,819 632,844
Totzl comprehensive income
for the year ended June 30,
2014
Profit for the year - - - 173,930 173,530
Other comprehensive loss - - - (2,436) {2,436)
= = : 171,494 171,494
Surplus on revaluation of fixed
assetsrealised during the year
{net of deferred taxation) on
account of Incremental
depreciation - - - 20,062 20,062
Balance as at june 30, 2014 450,025 40,000 - 334,375 824,400

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these finandal statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director
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NOTES TO THE ANANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1.

2.
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.31

(a)

(b)

232

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ghandhara Nissan Limited (the Company) was incorporated on August 8, 1981 in Pakistan as a private
limited company and subsequently converted into a public limited compary on May 24, 1992, The
registered office of the Company Is situated at Ghandhara House, 109/2 Clifton, Karachi. ks
manufacturing facilities are located at Port Gasim, Karachi. The Company's shares are listed on Karachi
and Islamabad Stock Exchanges.

The principal business of the Company is assembly / progressive manufacture of Nissan passenger Cars,
UD Trudds and Buses, import and marketing of Nissan vehicles and assembly of other vehicles under
contract agreement.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 shall prevail

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional currency of the
Company and flgures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless ctherwize spedfied.

New and amended standards and interpretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and milevant

The amendments to the following standards have been adopted by the Company for the first ime for
thefinancial year beginning on July 1, 2013:

Amendment to IAS 1, Financial statement presentation’ regarding disdosure requirements for
comparative information. The amendment darifies the disdosure requirements for comparative
information when an entity provides a third balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding pericd if
it applies an accounting policy retrospecively, and the retrospective application has a material effect
on the information in the balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period, Le. the opening
position. No notes are required to support this balance sheet.

1AS 19, Employee benefits’ was revised in June 2011 Revised standard eliminates the corridor
approach and calculates finance costs on a net funding basis. 1AS 19 (Revised) amends the accounting
for the Company's defined benefit plan. The Company has applied this standard retrospectively and its
impact on the Company's finandal sietements has been explained in note 5.1.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved acoounting standards that are
effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are
mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on July 1, 2013 are considered not to be relevant or to
have any significant effect on the Company's financizl reporting and are, therefore, not detailed in
these financial statements.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Company

The following amendments to published standards are not effective (although available for early
adoption) for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2013 and have not been early adopted by the
Company:

Annual improvements 2012 applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, These
amendments indude changes from the 2010-2012 cyde of annual Improvements project that affect
seven standards: IFRS 2, Share-based payment', FR5 3, 'Business combinations', IFRS B, 'Operating
segments’, IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement’, IAS 16, 'Property, plant and equipment’, IAS 24, ‘Related
party disclosures’ and IAS 38, 'Intangible assets'. The Company does not expect to have material impact
on its finandal statements due to application of these amendments.

Annual improvements 2013 applicable for annual perfods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. Thess
amendments indude changes from the 2011-2013 cyde of annwal improvements project that affect
four standards: IFRS 1, 'First time adoption of International Finandal Reporting Standards, IFRS 3,
'Business combinations’, IFRS 13, 'Falr value measurement’ and IAS 40, 'I'vestment property’. These
amendments do not have any impact on Company’ finandal statements.

I1AS 32 [Amendment), 'Firanclal Instruments: presentation’, |s applleble on accounting perlods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014, This amendment updates the application guidance in |AS 32,
'Fnancial instruments: presentations’, to darify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets
and firancial liabilities on the reporting date. The Company shall apply this amendment from July 1,
2014 and does not expect to have a material impact on its financial statements.

145 36 (Amendment), Impairment of assets', is applicable on accounting periods begiming on or after
January 1, 2014. This amendment addresses the disdosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The Company
shall apply this amendment from July 1, 2014 and this will only affect the disclosures in the Company's
financial statements in the event of impairment.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that
are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented
here.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
classes of property, plant and equipment which have been induded at revalued amounts and certain
staff retirement benefit which has been recognised at present value as determined by the Actuary.

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with approved acoounting standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and experses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised In the period In which the estimate is revised and In any future periods
affected.

The areas where varous assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgement was exerdsed in application of accounting policies are as follows:




iy Estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets
(notesd4,1and 4.2)

(i) Netrealisable values of stores, spares & loose ools and stock-in-trade (note 4.5)
(i} Provision for staff benefits (note 4.10)

(v} Provision for axation (note 4.12)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIO
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finandal statements are set out

below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented, except as stated in note
5.

4.1 Property, plant and equipment
4.1.1 Operating fixed assets

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, bullding on freehold land and plant &
machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depredation and impairment loss, if any. Freehald land
Is stated at revalued amount and bullding on freehold land and plant & machinery are stated at
revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. Cost indudes expenditre that Is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent cost
Subsequent cost are induded in the asset's carrying amournt or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it & probable that future economic benefits assockated with the item will flow
to the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired from use. Normal

repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the period in which they are
Incurred.

Depreciation
Depredation on all items of operating fixed assets other than freehold land is charged to income

applying the reducing balance method at the rates stated in note 6.1. Depreciation on additons to
operating fixed assets s charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalised while no
depredation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off,

The depreciation method and useful lives of items of operating fixed assets are reviewed periodically
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed signifiantly. Any change is accounted for as
a change in accounting estimate by changing depredation cha rge for the current and future periods.

Disposal

Galns or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of assets and are included in the profit and loss account.

Revaluation of assets

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does
not differ materially from the fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account

Leased assets

Fixed assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount egqual to the lower of its fair value
and present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease less acoumulated
depredation and Impaimment losses, If any.
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Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indiation that opermting fixed
asses may be impaired. If such indication exists, the aarrying amourts of such assets are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of thelr recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed
the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resufting impaiment loss is taken to profit and loss account except for impairment loss on revalued
assets, whidh ks adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the Impairment loss does
not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset.

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. All expenditure
connected with specific assets Incumred during installation and construction period are camied under
capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to spedfic assets as and when assets are avallable for
use.

4.2 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.
Cost associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an
expense as incurred, Costs that are directly assodated with ldentiflable and unigue software products
controlled by the Company and will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one
year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs indude staff cost costs of the software
development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure which enhance or extend the performance of computer software programs beyond their
original spedfications are recognised as capital improvement and added to the original cost of the
software.

Amortisation
Inangible assets are amortis ed using the reducing balance method at the rate stated in note 7.

4.3 Investments

4.31 Investments in Subsidiary and Assoclated Company
Investmemts |n Subsidiary and Associated Company are carried at cost less impairment, if any.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense. At each reporting date, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of investments and its recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that
such investments have suffered an impalrment loss. If any such indication exists, the carrying amount of
the investments is adjusted to the extent of impaimment |oss which is recognised as an expense in profit
and |oss account.

4.32 Avallable forsale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in esponse
to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as avallable for sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are re-measured at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive Income. Galns or losses on available for sale investments
are recognised in other comprehensive Income until the investments are sold or disposed off, or until
the investments are determined to be impaired, at that ime cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in other comprehensive Income Is Included in current period's profit and loss account
4.4  Stores, spares and loose tooks

Stomes, spares and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost and net reallsable value. The st of
imventory is based on weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence, if any. Items in transit are
stated at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges thereon accumulated upto the reporting
date.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10
4.10.1

Stock-intrade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of varlous dasses of stock-In-trade Is
determined as follows:

Stock category Valuation method
Complete Knock Down Kits Spedfic cost identification
Complete Built-up Units Spedfic cost identification
Local mw materials At cost on welghted average basis,
Work-in-process and finished goods At cost which comprises of raw materials,

import incidentals, direct labour and
appropriate portion of manufacturing

overheads.
Stack-in-transit At Involee price plus all charges pald
thereon upto the reporting date.
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred In order to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are inidally recognised at original involce amount which is the fair value of consideration to
be receved In future and subsequently carrled at cost less provision for doubtful debts, If any. Carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date and a provision is made for
doubtful receivables when wmllection of the amount B no longer probable. Debts considered
irrmcoverable are written-off.

Loans and receivables
Loans and recelvables are non-derivative finandal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an adive market They are included in current assets, except for maturities outstanding

for more than 12 months as at the reporting date, in which case, they are classified as non-current
assels.

Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and @sh equivalents are arried In the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and @sh equivalents include deposits held at @il with banks and other short t2em
highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received Finance charges are
accounted for on accrum| basls.

Staff benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates unfunded gratulty scheme which defines the amount of benefit that an
employee will receilve on retirement subject to minimum gualifying period of service under the
scheme. The amount of retirement benefit is usually dependent on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and salary, Provision for gratulty Is made annually to cover obligation under the scheme
in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation was conducted on June
30, 2014 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an independent Actuary. The liability
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan Is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period,

The amount arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the balance sheet Immediately,

with a charge or credit to other comprehensive Income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service
cost, if any, are recognised Immediately in Income.
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4.10.2 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution plan (l.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all its
permanent employees. The Company and the employees make equal menthly contributions to the fund
at the rate of B.33% of the basic salary and cost of living allowance, The assets of the fund are held
separately under the control of trustees.

4.10.3 Employeess compensated absences

Employees' entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they acorue to employess. A provision is
rmade for the estimated llability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees upto
the reporting date.

4.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at thelr cost which is the falr value of the consideration to be paid
In future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.12 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, to provision for tax

made In previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years and deferred
tax,

Currant

Provision of cumment @x is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law Tor taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates
or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted.

Deferred

Deferred tax is sccounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences ardsing from differences between the camylng amounts of assets and Nabilities In the
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extentthat it is probable that taxable profit shall be avallable against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax |s ciculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax & charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the cse of items credited or
charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

4.13 Financial assets and liabilities

Finandal assets and financial liabflities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Company loses control of
contractual rights that comprise the finandal assets and in the case of finandal llabilities when the
obligation spedfied in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of finandal assetsand finandal liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the
year.
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4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Finandal instruments carred on the balance sheet includes long temm loans, long term deposits, trade
debts, loans & advances, short term deposits, short term Investment, other recelvables, bank balances,
liabilities against assets subject o finance lease, long term deposits, trade and other payables, acoued
mark-up, short term firances and running finances. All financial assets and liabilities are initally
measured at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and received respectively. These
financial assets and liabilitles are subsequently measured at falr value, amortised cost or cost as the
case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual poliey
statements assodated with each item.
Offsetting of finandal assets and Kabilities
Finandal assets and lmbllities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there ks a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle
elther on a net basls, or to reallse the asset and settde the llabllity simultaneocusly.
Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present kegal or constructive obligatlon as a result
of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and ad|usted to reflect the current best estimate.
Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclosed unless an Inflow of economic benefitsis
probable and contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed unless the probability of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benafits is remote.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it i probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes, sales returns
and commission. Revenue from different sources Is recognised on the following basls:
Trading

= \ehides are treated as sold when invoiced and delivered. Commission income is recognised on

the basis of shipmant.
Spare part sales are recorded on the basis of dispatches made to the customers.

Manufacturing

- Vehides are treated as sold when Invoiced and dispatched to customers.
Other

- Return on bank deposits is accounted for on accrual basls.
Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or proeduction of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
are added to the cost of those assets, untll such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
imtended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the perod in which they are incurred.
Forelgn currency translation

Transactions in foreign cumrencies are tramslated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevalling on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and llabllides denominated In foreign
currencies are translated into reporting currency eguivalents using year end foreign exchange rates.
Non monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate that existed when the values
were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are taken to profit and loss
account currenthy.
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4.19 Impairment loss

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
circumstances indicating ocumence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for impairment losses,
if any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated and impairment losses or
reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the profit and |oss account Reversal of impairment
loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

4.20 Earningsper share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for Its ordinary shares. Baslc EPS
Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

4.21 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and other appropnations to reserves are recognised in the penod in which they are approved.
5. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLIQES

51 Initial application of I1AS 19 {Revised) - Employes benefits

1AS 19 (Revised) - ‘Employee benefits' effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
amends the accounting for Company's defined benefit plan. The revised standard requires past service
cost to be recognised immediately in the profit or loss and replaces the interest cost an the defined
benefit obligation and the expected return on plan assets with a net interest cost based on the net
defined benefit asset or liability and the discount rate, measured at the beginning of the year. Further, a
new term “re-measurements”’ has been introduced which Is made up of actuarial gains and lesses, the
difference between actual investment returns and the return implied by the net interest cost. The
revised standard eliminates the crridor approach and requires "re-measuremenis” to be recognised in
the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the perieds in
which they oceur.,

Following the application of I1AS 19 [Revised), the Company's policy for 'Staff benefits - defined benefit
plan'stands amended as follows:

The amount arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately,
with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the perieds in which they occur. Past-service
cost, If any, are recognsed Immediately In the profitand loss account

5.2 Investment in an Assodated Company

On July 26, 2013, the Company has acquired & subsidiary, Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited thereby
necessitating preparation of consolidated finandal statements in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Due to this all equity accounted investments to be carried at cost in
accordance with the requirements of |1AS 27 - "Separate Finandal Statements’ and IAS 28 - Investments
Iin Associates and Joint Ventures”. Consequent to this, the Company now accounts for its investment in
an Associate at cost. Consolidated financlal statements of the Company are prepared separately.

The changes in accounting polides have been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 8 'Accounting polices, changes in accounting estimates and emors' and

comparative figures have been restated. Effects of restatements are as follows:
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6.

s at June 30, 2013

As at July 1, 2012

A Aa
"::;"':’ u-:ud m:.mlnt ’::::1‘:? m::u -u?mm
s——eeee RUpeas n 000 Rupees in 000 -—-—-—
Effect on balance sheet
Long lamm investmants 422190 02,635 (320,555) 394,182 92,635 (301,547)
tem cradited directly in
by an Associate 61,118 - (61,118) 59,767 - (59,767)
Unappropriated profit 108,408 142819 34,410 49 226 115,089 65,843
Surplus on revaluation of
Mixed assals 1,014,770 713,289 (301,481) 1,030,838 728,008 (302.830)
Siaff benefils 90,828 B8,758 (2,072) 89,198 B1,938 (7.262)
Defarred taxation 306 1,010 704 7873 10,442 2,489
For the year andad June 30, 2013
Aa
P;‘::::r M;&d Jﬂllﬂ
Effect on profit and loss account Rupees in "000
Cost of sales 1626373 1.626438 65
Distribution cost 18,558 18,562 3
Administrative expenses 117,838 117 986 150
Shara of profit of an
Assoclated Company 28,008 - (28,008)
Taxatlon 7.534 7459 (75)
Other comprabansive income
Re-measuremant loss of stalf
ratirament benefit obligation (4.972) (4.8972)
Impact of deferred lax 1,680 1.680
Effect on earnlngs per share m—— ATOUNE IN rUPEes ===
Eamings per share - basic and diluted 0.85 0.23 0.62

There was no cash flow impact as a result of the retrospective application of changes In accounting

policies.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating ficed assets

Capital work-in-progress
- advance payments against vehides

2014 2013

Note —~ Rupees in 000 -—-
6.1 1,759,365 1,326,108
4,673 -
1,764,038 1325108
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6.2

6.4

Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant & machinery had previously been revalued on June
30, 1997, June 30, 1999, January 1, 2004 and June 30, 2009.

The Company, as at June 30, 2014, has again revalued its freehold land, buildings on freehold land,
plant & machinery and assembly Jigs. The revaluation exercise has been carried out by Independent
valuer - Harvester Services (Pvt.) Ltd., (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' Association and Leasing
Association of Pakistan) I. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Freehold land has been revalued on the basis of
current market price whereas bulldings on freehold land, plant & machinery and assembly jigs have
been revalued on the basls of depreciated market value. The appraisal surplus arsen on latest
revaluation exercise aggregating Rs.468.345 million has been incorporated in the books of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying amount of each
revalued dass of operating fixed assets would have been as follows:

2014 2013
Note —— Rupees in 000 -—-
Freehold land 61,456 61,456
Bullding on freehold land 127,683 134 403
Plant and machinery 135,395 14251
Assembly ligs 2,193 -
Depreciation charge has been
allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 311 51,422 5301
Administrative expenses 33 3,118 5,148
54,540 58,169

The Company's present and future land, building on freehold land and plant & machinery are under
morigeged / hypothecated charged upto Re.1,647 million (2013: Rs.1,647 million) with banks for short
term finance facllities.

The details of operating fixed assets disposed-off are as follows:

Accumi-
Particularof . lated h'::r Sl o "::' Particular of
assote deproc- procesds buyers
value disposal
intion
Rupees in "000
Vahicles
NissanSunny 1,170 B30 631 566 36  Megotiafion Ghandhara industries Limited
- @an Associated Company
Nissan Sunny 1,045 848 187 461 2684 Company policy Mr. Agial Amijad Ghani
- Empioyoa
Nissan Sunny ara BB6 187 456 268 Company policy Mr. Aglel Amjad Ghani
- Employaee

June 30,2014 3088 2173 915 1483 568

June 30, 2013 3,104 2388 806 1852 1,048
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2014 203

Note —= Rupees in ‘000 -—-
These represent computer software |icenses.
Cost 500 500
Accumulsted smortisation
At beginning of the year 342 289
Add: charge for the year 33 a0 53
At end of the year ag2 342
Net book value 118 158
Eaaaa—— 1 —_
Rate of amortisation (%) 25 .3
8. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Re-stated
2014 203
—= Rupees in 000 -—-
Subsidiary Company - at cost
Ghandhara DF [ Private) Limited
5.995,500({2013: Nil) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 59,995 -
Equity held: 99.99% (2013: NII)
Break-up value pershare on the basis of latest
fimancial statements is Rs.10
Assodated Company - at cost
Ghandhara Industries Umited - at cost
5,166,168 (2013: 5,166,168) ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each
Equity held: 24.25% (2013: 24.25%) 81 92,635 92635
Falr value: Rs. 173 945 million
{2013: R5.94.793 million)
Others -avallable for sale
Automotive Testing & Training Center
(Private) Uimited
187,500 {2013; 187,500) ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each -cost 1,875 1,875
Provision for impairment {1,875) (1.875)
152,630 92 635
8.1 Refer content of note 5.2
9, LONG TERM LOANS - Unsecured,
corsidered good
Loansto employees- other than executive 8.1 6,258 1912
Amounis recoverable within one year and
Emuped under current assets {1,394) (689)
4,864 1223

9.1 These represent Interest free loars provided w employees of the Company as per terms of
employment for varlous purposes. These loans are repayable on monthly instalments, which varies
from caseto case.
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10.

1L

1L

121

13

131

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Deposit held with [ against
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Umited
- lease facilities

- utilities
- others

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores
Spares and loose twools

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials

In hand

In transit

Work in process
Finished goods
In hand
Vehides - Trucks / Buses
Spare parts
In Transit
Complete Built-up Units - Trucks

2014 2013
—= Rupees in 000 -—-
25 5
1,732 440
6,174 6,144
100 100
8,031 6,709
43,940 32,153
115 115
44,055 32,268
331,465 48,727
302,388 168,567
633,853 217,294
. 24,320
15,603
11,324
47239
31,604 6,617
58,621 53,856
692,474 295470

The present and future stodk-in-trade, trade debts and receivables aggregating Rs.1,715 million (2013:
Rs.1,715 milllon) are under pledge / jolnt hypathecation charge with banks agalnst short term finances

and running firances.

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured,
considered good

Vehicles and assembly charges
Spare parts

Trade debts indude the following amounts
due from Associated Companies:

Ghandhara Industries Limited
Rehman Cotton Mills Umited

2014 2013

MNots — Rupess in 000 -—-
131 393,093 302104
2,490 3.079
395,583 305183
91,117 69,151
5 57
91,122 68208

_—
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The ageing of the trade debts receivable from Assodated Companies as at the reporting date are as
follows:

2014 2013
Note —— Rupees in 000 -—-
Up to 3 manths 54,013
3 to 6 months 37,109 69,151
mare than 6 months - 57
91,122 65208
LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured,
considered good
Current partion of long term leans 9 1,394 G6H9
Loans to:
-executives 1418142 1,910 -
-gmployesas other than executives 141 375 236
2,285 236
Advancesto:
- emacutives 254 56
- employeas 1,785 880
- suppliers, contractors and others 19,823 15,353
21,862 16289
25,541 17,214
_——

These represent interest free general loans and special loans provided to employees in accordance with
Company's policy and have maturities upto twelve months.

Reconcliiation of carrying amount of 2014 2013
loans to executives -— Rupees in 000 --
Balance at beginning of the year - 603
Disbursements 2,764 -
2,768 603
Repayments (8s4) (603)
Balance at end of the year 1,910 -

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year ended June 30,
2014 from executives aggregated to Rs2.095 million {2013: Rs.0.500million},

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 014 2013
—= Rupees in 000 -—-
Deposits against lease facilities 440 -
Prepaid
- rent [Bibojee Services (Private) Limited -
the Holding Company] 9,118 8,550
- insurance 4,948 3,052
14,066 11,602
Current account balances with satutory authorities 1,215 aon
15,721 14673




16

17.

18.

19,
191

15.2

OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good 2014 2013

—= Rupess in 000 —-
Salestax refundable [/ adjustable 32,039 12,480
Bank guarantee margin 613 613
Securlty deposits and samest money 13,079 9239
Accrued Interest 733 -
Dthers 2,747 2419
49,211 24,751

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

This represents investment ina Term Deposit Receipt {TDR) having face value of Rs.38.00 million placed
with National Bank of Pakistan fora term of 120 days. This TOR carries mark-up at the rate of 7% per
annum and Is mawring on October 13, 2014,

BANK BALANCES 014 2013
Note —~— Rupess in 000 -—-
Cash at banks in:
- current accounts 88,232 465213
- deposit accounts 18.1 10,298 9917
= term de posits receipts 182 54,000 -
152,530 56,440
Provision for doubtful bank balance 183 (3,912) {3.912)

148,618 52528

These, during the year, carry mark-up at the rates of B.B and 9.00% (2013: 9.00% and 1150%) per
annum,

Term deposit receipts (TDRs) have maturity days ranging from eighty three to ninety three days from
respective dates of acquisition. These TDRs camry mark-up at rates of 7.00% and B.50% per annum.

This represents provision made against bank balance held with Indus Bank Limited whose operations
were ceased by the State Bank of Pakistan and Is under liquidation. The above balance 5 net of
Rs5.42.586 milllon deposited In the deposit account and margin acoount against four letters of credit due
in May and June 2000, Despite full payments and seversl reminders, the payment of above letters of
credit has not been made to the supplier of goods The Company considers that it has discharged its
obligation against the said letters of credit,

SHARE CAMTAL 2014 2013
—— Rupees in 000 —-
Authorized capital
80,000,000(2013: 80,000,000) erdinary shares of
fs.10 each 800,000 800,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up apital
2014 2013
= No, of shares -
14,800,000 14,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach
fully paid in cash 148,000 148,000
200,000 200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
Isaued as fully paid
banus shares 2,000 2,000
30,002,500 30,002500 Ovrdinary shares of Re 10 aach
issuad for scquisilion 300,025 200,025
45,002,500 45,002,500 450,025 450,025
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19.3 The Company is a subsldiary of Bibojee Services (Private) Limited which holds 62.32% {2013:
62.32%) share ca pital of the Company.

194 Ondinary shares held by related parties other 2014 2013
than the Holding Company as at year end: —MNumber of shares -
Universal Insurance Company Umited 5,000 5,000
UD Trucks Corporation, lapan 3,647,090 3,647,090
e
20.  SURPLUS ONREVALUATION OF Re-stated
FIXED ASSETS - Net 014 2013
Note —— Rupees in ‘000 -—-
Balance at beginning of the year 919,990 951,987
Surplus arisen on revaluation carred-out
during the year 6.2 468,345 -
Trarsfered to unappropriated profiton
account of incremental depreciation for the year (30,337} (31,997)
1,357,938 919,990
Less: ralated deferred tax of:
- balance at beginning of the year 206,701 223373
- surplus arisen during the year 113,159 -
- inoemental depreciation for the year {10,335) {11,199)
- effect of change in tax rate {5,775) (6,079)
- balance at end of the year 308,750 206,701
Balance at end of the year 1,054,188 713289
21 LIABLLITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE
Balance at beginning of the year 1,260 7,840
Assets acquired during the year 17,315 -
Repaid [/ adjusted during the year {1,913) (6,580)
16,662 1260
Current portion grouped under curnent fiabilities (3,656) (1148)
Balance at end of the year 13,006 imn

711 These represent vehicles acquired under finance lease / diminishing musharakah arrangements from
various financial institutions. Rentals are payable on monthly and quarterly basis. These finance
fadlities, during the year, were subject to finance cost at the rates ranging from 15.22% to 17.32%
(2013: 12.63% to 18.00%) per annum. These fadlities are secured against title of the leased vehicles in
the name of kessor. The Company imends to exercise (15 option to purchase the leased vehides upon
completion of the lease terms.

The future minimum lease payments to which the Company |s cmommitted under the agreements will be
due as follows:
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23.1.2

Upto Fromone Uplc From cne
Particulars ona to five 2014 ane to five 2013
year years year years
Rupees in "000
Minimum leasa payments 5,695 15,592 21,287 1,202 112 1,314
Finance cost allocated fo
future periods (2,039)  (2,586) (4,625) (53) (1) (54)
Present value of minimum
lease payments 3,656 13,006 16,682 1,149 111 1,260
LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2014 2013
Note —— Rupees in 000 -—-
Dealers' deposit 221 9,000 5,000
Vendors 111 111
Others 500 500
9,611 9611
These deposits are Interest free and are not efundable during subsistence of dealership.
STAFF BENEFITS Re-stated
2014 2013
Note —— Rupees in '000 -—-
Provision for gratuity 231 70,404 61,068
Provision for compensated absences .,391 27 688
94,735 BR, 756

=
The Company's obligation as per the |atest actuarial valuation in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan

is as follows:

Amount recognised in the balance sheet
s asfollows

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Benefits payable

Net liability at end of the year

Net liability at beginning of the year
Charge to profit and loss account

Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Fayments made during the year
Net liabifity at end of the year

Mowverment in the present value
of defined benefit obligation
Balance at beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Bernefits due but not paid
Re-measurement on obligation

Balance at end of the year

Re-stated
2014 2013
—= Rupess in 000 -—-
70,356 60,895
48 173
70,404 61,068
61,068 51575
10,482 9963
3,636 4972
{4,782) 5442)
70,404 61,068
60,895 4R 553
4,333 3651
6,149 6312
(4,657) (2468}
= {125)
3,636 4972
70,356 60,895
e
GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
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Re-stated

23.1.3 Expense recognised In profit and 2014 2013
loss account —— Rupees in 000 -—-
Current sarvice cost 4,333 3,651
Interest cost 6,149 6312
10,482 9,963
23.1.4 Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive incoma
Experence adjustments 3,836 4872
2014 203
23.1.5 Actuarial assumptions used -= % perannum —
Discount rate 13.25 10.50
Expected rate of increase in future salaries 13.25 10.50
Mortality rates (for death in service) SucC EFU
2001-2005 61-66

23.1.6 Sensitivity analysisfor actuarial assumptions

The ealculation of defined benefit obligation & sensitive to assumptions set-out in note 23.15. The
follewing table summarises how the net defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
would have increased / (decreased) as a result of change In respective assumptions.

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assum- assumption assumption
ption —-Rupeesin ‘000 -—
Discount rate 1.00% 65,033 74658
Increase In future salaries 1.00% 74,672 64941

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be
correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined berefit cbligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
gratuity Rabllity recognised within the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.

7317 Based on actuary's advice, the expected charge for the year ending June 30, 2015 amounts to Rs.13.256

million.
23.1.8 The weighted average duration of the scheme is 7 years.
23.18 Historical information 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Rupees in "000
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 70,356 60,885 48,553 44,758 46,396
Experience adjustment
on obligation 3,636 4972 (4,798) (4.812) 5,105

34| GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED



23.1.10 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan:

ﬂ::'n Between || Between || Over 5 Total
yoar 1-2years || 2-5 yoars || yoars
Rupees in "000
As at June 30, 2014 17,175 8,575 30955 773,395 B37,100
24,  DEFERRED TAXATION - Net Re-stated
2014 2013
The liability for deferred taxation comprises of Note —— Rupees in 000 -—-
tempaorary differences relating to:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 50,806 52,753
- surplus on revaluation of Mixed assets 303,750 206,701
- lease finances 821 530
- provision for gratufty (23,584) (20,764)
- provision for compensated absences (8,531) (9.414)
- provision for bank balances {1,291} {1.330)
- minimum tax recoverable against
normal tax charge In future years (75,912) (43.502)
- gxcess of alternative corporate tax over
corporate taxes recoverable in future years (17,948) -
- unused @x losses (70,074) (177 964)
158,039 1,010
25, TRADE AND OTHER PAYAB LES 014 2013
—— Rupees in '000 -—-
Trade creditors 86,065 852,708
Bills payable 241,038 259,038
Accrued liabilities 251 20,376 25300
Refundable - CKD / CBU business 1,403 1403
Customers' credit balances 25.2 288,616 27,696
Commission 17,918 5838
Unclaimed gratuity 231 231
Deakers' deposits against vehicles 52,800 5,000
Custom duties payable 2,263 -
Due torelated parties 253 1,894 24362
Withholding tax 1,214 565
‘Workers' profit partidpation fund 15.4 14,484 962
Workers' welfare fund 5,512 366
Retention money 103 108
Uncleimed dividend 961 961
Dealer deposit payable on cancellation of dealership 1,000 1,000
Others 255 & 156 12,962 7465
768,840 442993
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Inciudes Rs.13.704 million (2013: Rs.15.463 million) which periains to a key management person.
These represent advances from customers agalnst sale of trucks and carry no mark-up.

2014 2013
Due to related parties Note —= Rupees in 000 -—-
UD Trucks Corporation - Japan 7,676 5742
Universal Insurance Company Limited 3,958 3,708
The Genreral Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited 3 1904
Gamman Pakistan Limited arz 623
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan 9,885 12385
21,894 24362
Workers' profit participation fund
Balance at beginning of the year 962 -
Alocation for the year as 14,484 262
Interest on funds utilised in the
Company's business 36 B7 -
15,533 862
Payment made during the year {1,0435) -
Balance at end of the year 14,484 962

Indudes Rs.3.675 million {2013: Rs.1.043 million) which pertain to key management personnel,

Indudes depodts and Instalments under the Campany's staff vehicle policy aggregating Rs.2.654 milllon
{2013: Rs.0 566 million).

ACCRUED MARK-LUP 2014 2013
Mark-up accrued on: Wote —— Rupess in 000 -—
- short term finances 2,973 2228
= running finances 2,205 11,548
5,178 13,776

SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured
Finance against imported merchandise

- National Bank of Pakistan 271 - 53,601
- The Bank of Khyber 7.2 181,245 24371
T 181,245 779712

Finance against trust receipts
- National Bank of Pakistan 271.1 225,743 1,737

Short term demand finance

- Faysal Bank Limited 213 41,873 A4 883
448,861 134,592




274 The Company has arranged Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM: and Finarre Against Tret
Recelpts (FATR) faciiities of an aggregate limit of Rs.500 milllon (2013 : Rs.300 milllon) from National
Bank of Pakistan. These fadlities are secured agalnst effective piecge of linpurier goucs, Culy 5'gned
trust receipts and cumulative chamge (equitable and hypothecition] cher ¢ Convpanvs land bulding
and plant & machinery for Rs.467 million. These fadlities carry mark-up at the mte of 3 months KIBOR
plus 200 basis points. FIM and FATR are reoaygahis withlr 120 oays of disbursement / creation. These
finance facilities are available upto October 21, 2014,

27.2  The Company has also arranged FIM of Rs. 250 million (2013: Rs.100 million} from the Bank of Khyber.
This finance facility is secured against effective pledge of Imported consignments and carries mark-up
at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 basis points. FIM isadjustable within 120 days of disbursement /
creation. This finance fadlity is available upto December 31, 2014,

= The Company had arranged short term loan of Rs.330 million from Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank)
against outstanding import bills. Ornginally this loan was repayable in monthly instaiments of Rs.22
million each. The Company during the prior years had repald Instalments aggregating Rs.215 milllon
and balance of Rs.115 million was renewed by the Bank. The Company has made prindpal payments of
Rs.73.127 million till June 30, 2014 of this renewed finance fadiity. Year-end balance of this finance
fadlity has been again renewed by the Bank. This facility i secured against first pari passu charge of
Rs.367 million on stocks and receivables, rmnking charge of Rs.434 million over stocks & receivables and
ranking charges of As.400 milion on plant and machinery of the Compamy. The short term loan carries
rmark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR plus L80% perannum.

28 RUNNING FIN ANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2014 2013
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured Note —-— Rupees in 000 -—-

Balance as at June 30, 281 54,380 179419

281 Aunning finance fadlities available from commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate to
As.375 million (2013: R5.423.535 million) and are secured by way of equitable, hypothecation and pari
passu charge over fixed and current assets of the Company. These, during the curremt finrancial year,

carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 11.06% to 1217% (2013: 11.28% to 13.95%) per annum. The
arrangements are explring on March 31, 2015

282 The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2014 aggregated to Rs.1,562
million {2013; Rs.635 million) of which the amount remained unutifised at the year-end was Rs.774.362
million (2013: Rs.120.070 million).

29,  CONTINGENQES AND COMMITMENTS

291 Certmin cases have been filled against the company In respect of employees matters. These cases are
pending in labour courts, high court and before National Industrial Relations Commission, Karachi. The
management is confident that the outcome ofthese cases will be in the Company's favour.

292 Commitment in respect of irrevocable |etters of credit as at June 30, 2014 aggregate to Rs.777.335
million {2013: Rs.455.004 million).

293 Guaranteesaggregating Rs.10.303 million (2013: Rs.59.926 million) are issued by banks of the Company
to various govemment and other institutions.
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30. REVENLUE - Net 014 203

Mote —=— Rupees in ‘000 - —-
Manufactured activity
Local 2,770,406 1,719,408
Export 30,965 3
2,801,371 1,715 408
Less:
- 5ales tax 402,538 237,755 |
- pommission 39,850 16,075
442,388 253,830
2,358,983 1465578
Trading activity
Local 317,524 470,266
Export 2,902 -
320,426 470,266
Less:
- 5@l es tax 46,175 53553
- discount and commission 13,324 29653
59,499 83,606
260,927 386,660
2,619,910 1,852,238
31 COST OF SALES Restated
014 2013
—— Rupees in 000 -—-
Finkhed goods at begimning of the year 53,856 57846
Cost of gpoods manufactured 311 1,905,707 1,212 945
Purdhases - trading goods 247,879 409 502
2,153,586 1,622 448
Finished goods at end of the year 12 (58,621) (53,856)
2,148,821 1626438
311 Costof goods manufactured
Work In process at beginning of the year 24,320 25579
Raw materials and parts consumed 312 1,597,503 946,952
Fabriation of contract vehides 7,881 9450
Stores and spares consumed 27,908 13,830
Salarles, wagesand benefits 313 114,548 117,089
Trarsportation 8,209 11,566
Repair and maintenance 2,883 6,688
Depredation B4 51,422 53,021
Material handiing 1,150 a7
Insurance 3,452 6451
Communication a76 554
Rent, rates and taxes q14 296
Travelling and enterainment 664 1,020
Power generation costs 47,109 34589
Printing, statonery and office supples 910 641
Royalty expense 9,469 3862
Plant security 4,698 3o
Other manufacturing expenses 1,641 1,880
1,905,707 1,237 266
Work In process at end of the year - {24,.320)
1905, 707 1,212 946
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2014 2013

312 Raw materials and parts consumed —— Rupees in ‘000 -—-
Stocks at beginning of the year 48,727 281,287
Purchases 1,880,241 714392

© 1,928,9%8 = 935679
Stocks at end of the year (331,465) (48,727)
1,597,503 946,952

313 Salaries, wages and benefits indude Rs.3.180 million (2013: Rs.2.937 million) and Rs.2.327 million
(2013: Rs.1.97 1 million) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

3% DISTRIBUTION COST Re-stated
2014 2013
Naote —— Rupees in ‘000 -—-
Salaries and benefits 321 13,037 12 889
Utilities 203 254
Insuranoe = 15
Repair and maintenance 76 47
Travelling and enterta nment 2,627 3219
Telephone and postage 148 136
Vehicle running 743 544
Printing, stationery and office supplies 87 108
Security 511 360
Godown and forwarding 281 143
Sales promotion expenses 1,125 426
Others 276 76
19,318 18 562
—_—

321 Salarles and benefits Include Rs.0.167 million (2013: Rs.0.155 milion) and Rs.0.823 milllon (2013:
As.0.735 million) in respect of st=ff mtirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

33 ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES Re-stated
2014 2013
Note —— Rupeess in ‘000 -—-

Salaries and benefits 331 86,605 75,724
Utilites 4,887 3344
Rent, rates and taxes 7,627 7AT76
Directors' fee 450 380
Insurance 852 1,663
Repairs and maintenanos 1,505 1,007
Depredation and amortisation 6347 3,158 5201
Auditors' remuneration 33z 500 S00
Advertising 37a 561
Travelling and conveyance 3,336 6,638
Legal and professional charges 1,135 1,749
Vehicle running 3,103 3314
Telephone and postage 3,058 2531
Printing and stationery 2,773 1614
Subscription 1,554 1576
Sacurity expenses a7s 708
Donation 333 415 958
Others 2,274 3.041

124,565 117 986
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Salaries and benefits include Rs.7.155 million (2013: Rs.6.871 million) and Rs.1.831 million [2013:
As.2.057 million) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

2014 2013
Auditors’ emuneration —— Rupees in 000 —-
Audit fee
Hameed Chaudhri & Co. S0 250
Muniff Ziauddin & Co. =0 250
500 500

Donation of Rs.Nil (2013: Rs.0.958 million) chamged in these financial statements |s payable to Wagfe-
Kull Khan, 2nd Floor, Gammon House, 400-2, Chour Chowk, Peshawar Road, Rawalpind! (the Trust). Mr.
Razra Kuli Khan khattak, Chairman ofthe Company, Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak, Chief Executive ofthe
Company and Lt Gen. [Retd) All Kull Khan Khattak, Director of the Company, are trustees of the Trst.

OTHER INCOME 2014 2013
Note —= Rupees in 000 -—-

Income from finandal assets

Interest income 34.1 2,183 1125

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales - net of sales tax 3,921 1814 |

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 6.6 568 1,046 l

Payable balances written back - 3542 |

Commission income 5,254 705 !

Others 769 1715 |
10,512 920
12,6895 10347

Interest at the rates ranged from 7.00% to 9.00% (2013: 9.00% to 11.50%) per annum has been earned
during the year on term deposit recelpts and deposit accounts,

OTHER EXPENSES A 4013
Note —= Rupees in 000 -—-
Workers' profit partidpation fund 5.4 14,484 962
Woarkers' welfare fund 5,504 366
15,988 1328
Mark-up on:
- long term financing - 4926
- shart term finances 16,920 39,965
- running finances 2,575 32 042
Lease finance charges 653 41
Exchange loss 5,733 1,650
Interest on workers® profit particlpation fund 25.4 B7 -
Bank and other charges 4,250 1574

50,218 80,578
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TAXATION Re-stated

2014 im3
Note == Rupees in 000 -—-
Current
- for the year 371 44,984 9314
- for prior year (64) {192)
44,920 9122
Deferred
-origination and reversal of temporary differences 45,251 (7 005)
-impact of changein tax rate 4,594 5342
50,845 (1663)
95,765 7459

Provision for the current year mainly represents alternative corporate tax payabie under section 113C
and tax deducted under sections 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

EARNINGS PER SHARE Re-stated
2014 2013

Basic earnings pershare —— Rupees in 000 -—

Net profit for the year 173,930 10,234

-- Number of shares --
Weighted average ordinary shares In Issue 45,002,500 45,002,500
——— Rupees ———-
Earnings per share 3.86 0.23
Diluted earnings per share

Mo figures for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not ksued any
Iinstruments carrying options which would have an impact on eamings per share when exercised.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2014 2013
Chist  rector Executives - ™ uecior Exscutives
Executive Executive
Rupees in "000

Managerial remuneration 9,000 3600 37,351 0000 3800 33828
Contribution to provident

fund 456 = 1,694 458 i 1,550

Gratuity 228 ; 1,263 228 ; 1,145

Utiiities d - 2,645 L ; 2,439

9,684 3600 42953 9684 3600 38962

Number of persons 1 1 23 1 1 20
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391 The Chief Executive is also entitled for the use of the Company maintained car, security expensss,
telephone expenses and medical expenses at actual. He i also entitled to receive other benefits as per
Company policy applicable to all management employees.

392 Director and certain Executives of the Compamy are also provided with free use of the Company
maintained vehides.

353 Aggregate amount charged in the financial staterents for meeting fee to Directors was Rs.0450 million
(2013: Rs.0.380 million).

40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, the Subsidiary Company, Assodated Companles,
directors of the Company, companies in which directors are interested, staff retirement benefit plan,
key management personnel and clase members of the famllies of the directors & key management
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related

parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables and payables. Significant
transactions with related partlesare as follows:

MNature of 2014 2013
i transaction — Rupesas in '000 -
(i) Holding Company
Bibojee Services Reant of haad office 5,400 5400
(Private) Limited Sale of runway sweepers - 76,968
(i) Subsidiary Company
Ghandhara DF (Private)
Limited Investment made 50,995 -
(iii) Associated Companies
Universal Insurance
Company Limited Insurance pramium 250 6,349
The General Tyra and Purchase of tyres, tubesa
Rubber Company of and flaps 38,823 15,859
Pakistan Limited Sale of parts 58 -
Bannu Woollen Mils
Limited Sale of parts - 159
Ghandhara Industnes Contract assembly 117,257 140,662
Limited Fabrication of vehicles 1,241 1,320
Sale of parts - 2
Repair of vehicles - 504
Sale of fleat vehicie 566 -
Rehman Cotton Wills
Limited Sale of parts 5 117
Gammon Pakistan
Limited Office renl 1,500 1,500
Janana De Malucho Earnest monay raceived
Tendlle Miis Limited and paid back for sale
of trucks - 20,000
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Nature of 2014 2013

N transaction == Rupeas In '000 --
(Iv) Othears
UD Trucks Corporation, Royalty 9,469 3,882
Japan Purchases of complele
knock down kits 1,469,303 527,919
Stafl provident fund Confribution made 4, 881 4,763
Key managameant Ramunearation and other
personnal short tarm benefits 28,774 28,034
Sale of Nlest vehicles 917 -
PLANT CAPACITY

Against the designed annual production capacity of 6,000 vehides at car plant, on single shift basis, the
Company has assembled 803 (2013: 636) vehicles of Land Rover and also processed 1,115 (2013: 1.042)
Truck cabs through paint shop. Due to low demand of vehicles on account of economic slow down, the
plant capacity remained under-utilized. Against the production capacity of 2,500 trucks and buses on
single shift basis, the Company produced 1,246(2013: 1,146) trucks and buses of UD and Isuzu. Capadty
of trucks and buses production facility also emained under-utilized due to low demand on account of
economic slow down.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGE MENT
The Company has exposumnes to the following risks from its use of finandal instruments:

- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk {induding currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk].
The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and overview of Company's risk
management frame work. The board |5 also responsible for developing and menitoring the Company's
risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the finandal loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties
fall completely to perform as contracted [ fall to discharge an obligation / commitment that it has
entered into with the Company.

Credit risk primarily arises from long term koans, long term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances,
other receivables, short term investment and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit riskin
respect of trade debts, management performs oedi reviews taking Into acount the customer's
financial position, past experience and cther relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance
payments are obtained from certain parties. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter
partles are banks with reasonably crediting ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2014 along with comparative is Bbulated below:

014 203
—= Rupees in 000 -—
Long term loans 4,864 1223
Long term deposits 6,299 6269
Trade debts 395,583 a0s. 183
Loans and advanoes 3,679 925
Other receivables 17,172 1221
Short wrm investment 38,000 -
Bank balances 148,618 52528
614,215 7398
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geogra phic region is as

follows:
2014 2013
—=~ Rupeds in 000 -—-
Domestic 395,279 305,183
Export 304 -
305,583 305,183
The agelng of trade debts at the reporting date s as follows:
Up to 3 months 122,917 193,915
3 to 6 months 112,318 85,712
mare than 6 months 160,348 15,556
395,583 305,183

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past rack records and recoveries, the
Company believes that trade debts past due over six months do not require any impairment.

422  Liquidity risk

Liquldity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financlal obligations as they fall
due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have suffident liquidity to meet
its iabilities when due. Prudent |iquidity risk management implies maintaining suffident cash and cash
equivalent and ensuring the availability of adequate credit fadlities. The Company's treasury
department alms at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines avallable.

Finandal llabilities In accordance with thelr contractual maturities are presented below:

Betwean 5 years
1to5 and
yRars abova

Rupees in "000

Carrying Less than
amount 1 ysar

June 30, 2014
Liabilities against assets

subject to finance lease 16,662 3,656 13,006 -
Long term deposits 8,611 - - 9,611
Trade and other payables 456,751 458,751 - -
Accrued mark-up 5178 5178 - -
Short torm financos 448 B61 448 8861 - -

Running financas under
mark-up arrangemeants 54,380 54,380 - -
991,443 968,826 13,008 9,811

Carrying Less than Between1 5Svyears
armount 1 vear to 5 years and above

June 30, 2013 —_— Rupees In ‘000
Liabilities against assals
subject to finance lease 1.2680 1,149 111 -
Long term deposits 9,611 - - 9.611
Trade and other payables 413,404 413,404 - -
Accrued mark-up 13,776 13,776 - .
Short term financas 134,592 134,592 - -
Running finances under
mark-up arangaments 179,419 179,419 - -
752,062 T42,340 111 8.611
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(a)

(b)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Company's Income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable
parameters, while optimising the retum.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in forelgn exchange rates, The Company s exposed to currency risk on import of
raw materials, stores & spares and commission income denominated in U.5, Dollar, Japanese Yen and
Chinesa Yuan Renminbi (RMB). The Company's exposure to forelgn airrency risk at the reporting date is
as follows:

Rupees Yen uss RMVB
June 30, 2014 in ‘000
Trade and other payables 227,346 188,049 - 4113
Trade debts {304) - {3) 4
MNet exposure 227,042 188,049 {3 4113

Rupees Yen .55 RMVB
June 30, 2013 in 000
Trade and other payables 256,796 105,682 B0 8962
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Reporting date rate
014 2013

Y&n to Rupee 09748 /08728 0.99%4 /09574
U.S. 5to Rupee 9855 98.8/98.6
AMB to Rupees 15.91 16.20

Sensitivity analysis

At the reporting date, if Rupee had strengthened by 5% against Yen, Dollar and RMB with all other

variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher by the amount
shown below mainly as a result of net forelgn exchange gain on translation of net financial llabilities.

2014 2013
Effect on profit for the year —— Rupeess in 000 -—-
Yen to Rupee 9,166 5281
U.5. Sto Rupee (15) 296
RMB to Rupee 3,172 7259
12,423 12,836
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk & the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
Majorlty of the interest rate risk of the Company arses from short & long term borrowings from banks,

short term investment and balances held with banks. At the reparting date the profile of the Company's
Interest bearing finandal Instruments|s as follows:
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2014 2013

Financlal asset - fixed rate Instruments —= Rupees in 000 -—-
Short term investment 38,000 -
Bank balance 64,298 9917
102,298 9917
Financial Liabilitles - variable mte instruments
Liakilities against assets subject to finance lease 16,662 1,260
Short term finances 448 BE1 134 592
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 54,380 1419
519,903 31527

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect materially
profit for the year,

Sensitivity analysis for variable ate nstuments

A change of 100 basis point in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) / increased
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumed that all other variables, In
particular foreign curency mtes remain constant The analysisis performed on the same basis for 2013,

Increase [Decrease)
Cash flow sensitivity -variable ratefinancial Babifities -— Rupees in '000 —
As at June 30, 2014 5,199 {5,199)
| e
Asat June 30, 2013 3,153 {3.153)
_—
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indictive of the effects on profit for the year and
liabliities of the Company.
()} Pricersk

Price risk Is the risk that fair value or future sh flows from a finandal Instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). Whether
those changes are caused by factors spedfic to the individuwal finandal instrument or its Issuer, or
factors affecting all simllar financial instruments traded in the market As at June 30, 2014 /2013 the
Company did not have any finandal Instruments dependent on market prices.

424 Falr value of financial instruments
Fair value & the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or & lability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction
As at June 30, 2014 the carrying values of all finandal assets and liabllites reflected in the financial
statements approxdmate to their fair values except for staff loans which are valued at their original cost
less re payments.

43. CAPTALRISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.
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45.2

47.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments
toit in the lght of changes in economic conditions. In order to mairtain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the amount of dividend pald to shareholders and [ or lssue new shares. Thare
was no charge to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 014 2013
Number of employeasasat June 30,
- Permanent 27 223
- Contractual 31 381
Average number of employees during the year
- Permanent 26 232
- Contractual — »mo 35

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

The following information is based on un-audited finandal statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2014:

2014 2013
-— Rupees in "000 —
Sire of the Fund -total assets 63,621 55,066
Cost of investments made 60,050 51,667
Percentage of investments made 94.39% 93.83%
Fair value of investments 63,641 55,730
_— Eaaaa—— V3
Break-up of the investments i as folows:
2014 2013 2014 2013
—- Percentage -—— -— Rupees in 000 —
Bank deposits 174 2.65 1,105 1461
Government securities 78.94 77.12 50,220 42465
Mational Investment Trust - units 1371 14.06 8,725 7,741

Investments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 24, 2014 by the Board of Directors
of the Companmny.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on September 24, 2014 have proposed final
cash dividend of Rs.2.00 per share, amounting to Rs.90.005 millien, for the year ended June 30, 2014,
The proposed dividend will be approved in the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
October 28, 2014,

These finandal statements do not reflea the proposed dividend, which will be accounted for In the
statement of changes in equity as appropriation from unappropriated profit in year ending June 30,
2015,

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED | 47



48  CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Prior year's figures have been restated consequent to the retrospective application of IAS 19 (Revised)
and recognition of equity accoumed Investment at cost In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 27

and IAS 28, as more fully explained in note 5. For the purpose of better presentation following
corresponding figures have also been re-amanged / re-dassified:

Re-classification from Re-classification to
compoiient o Note Rupees in ‘000
Loans and advances Lorg term loans 9 1223
Other receivables Depositsand prepayments 15 307
Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director

Karachi ; 24 September 2014
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance
(the CCG) contained in the listing regulations of Karachi and Islamabad Stock exchanges
for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed
company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors

and directors representing minority interest on its board of directors. At present
the board includes:

Category Names

Executive Director (2) Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr.Jamil A, Shah

Non Executive Directors (6) Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan (FCA)
Ch. Sher Muhammad
Syed Haroon Rashid
Mr. Larbi Hbil
Independent Director (1) Mr. Mohammad Zia

None of the Directors is serving on the Board of more than seven listed
companies.

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none of
them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a
Development Finance Institution (DFI) or a Non-Banking Finance Institution (NBFI)
or, being a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that
stock exchange.

No casual vacancy has occurred during the period under the review.

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and have ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with the
supporting policies and procedures.
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The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material
transactions, including appointment and determination of remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment of the CEQ, other executive and non
executive directors have been taken by the Board/Shareholders.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at
least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the
meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

All directors of the Company have more than 14 years of education and 15 years
of experie nce on the board of directors of listed companies.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and the
CFO before approval of the Board.

The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The Board has formed an Audit Committee, it comprises of four members. Three
of them are non-executive directors.

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior
to approval of interim and final results of the Company and as required by the
Code of Corporate Governance. The terms of reference of the Committee have
been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.
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The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It
comprises of four members of whom three are non-executive directors including
the Chairman of the Committee.

The Board has set up an effective Internal Audit Function.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given
a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the
ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the listing
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines inthis regard.

The ‘Closed Period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and
business decisions, which may materially affect the market price of Company's
securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock
exchanges.

Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market
participants at once through stock exchanges.

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code of Corporate
Governance have been complied with.

The Board performs self evaluation annually.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
September 24,2014 Chief Executive Officer
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the endosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Govemance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghandhara Nissan Umited for the
year ended June 30, 2014 to comply with the requirements of Usting Regulations of the Karachi and
Islamabad Stock Exchanges where the Company is listed,

The responsibility for compliance with the Code s that of the Board of Directors of the Company., Our
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compllance with the provisions of the Code and
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review &
limited primarily to inguiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the finandal statements we are reguired to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Beard of Directors’ statement on Internal control covers all risks
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controks, the Company's corparate
governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevall in
arm's length tmnsactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper
justification for using such altemate pridng mechanism. We are only reguired and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or nat.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Comphance does not appropriately reflect the Compary's compliance, in all material respects, with the bast

practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended June30, 2014.
HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO,, MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO.,,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Osman Hameed Chaudhri Mohammad Moin Khan
Karachi ; 24th September 2014 Karachi ; 24th September 2014
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Key Operating and Financial Data (Rs. In '000)

Jur-
Particulars Jur=14 Jun-11 Jur-11 Jun-10 lun8 Jur-DE
13(Restated)

Sales 615,310 1851288 13SApcd  RESO088 2400617 208958 57088
Gross prafit [ {Loss) &TL0HS 175,800 130,578 ®mpam 18I 537 5N EB
Profitf{Loss) bafore tax 263,595 17,553 {37,683} fie083)  (L2EDT)  [4B4TM) FrE ]
Profit/{Loss) ater tax 173,330 10334 {45, 968) 1087 (LR E I E PR L 178,157
Share Capital &7 50085 50,005 00 S0 50,005 L ey
Shoreholders equity 24,400 B354 599,018 =l T G820 100538
Fored Assels - Net 1,764,156 1326266 1382880 2 LMLEN 148609 153510 s2.5m
Total Assets 34395 127550 1730006 4096037  ASGDMED  339L0%6 M7
Uniit Produced and Supplied {Contract Assembly) 1628 1568 13 L% 1LM5 000 591
Undtz Produced 84 14 356 455 ] &l 980
Units imported (CBU) 52 ] 1 7 ] 100 416
Units Sold 380 % 30 766 o 15
Dividend - Cash % - - = . :
Dividend - Bonug . = = & = -
Ratios
Prafitability
Gros profit margin 18.0% o S48 853% 497% 0.26% 18.06%
Prafit/{Lass) befors tax 10 1.0% {04%)  .5E% LEFH fad%) 7.55%
Profit/{Loss) afer tax hE% 0E% 619%) oI 170% (15%) Lh0%
Riturn to shareholdarn:
Raturn//[Loss) an Equity (BT) B A i (1531%) [L3ax) (195  {89aTH) Nk
Raturn/(Loss) on Equity (AT) 1% 16% (a5 1OP% (140K} (447K 1765%
Eaming/(Loss) per share [BT)-Rs. 99 Ly fo.00z) kT @75 {1078 622
Earming/{Loss) per share (AT)- As, i 0. {La1) 018 {198 6.9a) 1%
Basic Enrning Per Share 185 .3 (Lot} 0.36 [198) (E54) 195
Activity:
Sales (o Lotal assels - Timas 0% 1.7} [ L3] 0.8 07l 051 Lo
Sales to fixed assets -Times L8 140 1.00 184 1M
Liquidity:
Current ratlo -Times 118 182 104 1.08 L33
Break-up value per share- Re 582 2 1831 TN ] 1407 1552 1148
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at 30th June 2014

Shl':n‘:-:l;m Frmﬂlvln Sharss To Shares Held Percentage
715 1 100 24,034 0.0534
999 101 00 439,270 0.9761
25 501 1,000 295,665 0.6570
437 1,001 5,000 1.220.358 Z2.T118
116 5,001 10,000 931,126 2.0691
35 10,001 15,000 A57 098 1.0157
36 15,001 20,000 675,655 1.5014
26 20,001 25,000 6520559 13789
B 25,001 30,000 228527 0.5078
5 30,001 35,000 161,361 0.3586
5 35,001 40,000 191,550 0.4256
4 40,001 45,000 168,000 0.3733
7 45,001 50,000 344,500 0.7655
1 50,001 55,000 51,500 0.1144
4 55,001 &0, 000 236,084 0,5246
2 60,001 65,000 123,624 0.2747
1 70,001 75,000 75,000 0.1667
3 75,001 B0, DD 235,500 D.5233
1 BD,001 BS, 000 85,000 0.1889
3 85,001 90,000 267.000 0.5933
S 95,001 100,000 500,000 1.1110
1 100,001 105,000 102,500 02278
1 105,001 110,000 110,000 0.2444
1 135,001 140,000 140,000 0.3111
2z 145,001 150,000 300,000 0.6666
1 160,001 165,000 165,000 03666
2 205,001 210,000 415,500 0.9233
1 220,001 225,000 225,000 05000
2 245,001 250,000 491,313 1.0917
1 255,001 260,000 257,000 5711
1 305,001 310,000 308,000 06844
1 395,001 400,000 AQ0,000 0.BREER
1 455,001 470,000 470,000 1.0444
i 495,001 500, 000 S00,000 1.1110
1 665,001 670,000 668,500 1.4855
1 1,430,001 1,435,000 1,434,711 3.1381
1 3,645,001 3,650,000 3,647 090 8.1042
1 5,115,001 5.120, 000 5.119.820 11.3768
1 22.915,001 22,920,000 22,916,597 50,9230
2,759 45,00Z.482 100
Categories of Shareholders
Particulars Share holde rs Shareholding Percentage
Directors, CEO & Children a 202,333 04496
Associates Companies 2 31,693,507 70.4261
MIT & ICP 2 1,440,461 3.2008
Banks, ODF1 & NBF 1 1,760 0.0039
insurance Companies 2 17,800 0.0396
Modarabas & Mutual Funds 5 1,180812 26239
General Public {Lacal) 2,530 8.,272473 18.3823
General Publle (Farelgn) 176 335,268 0.7450
Others a3 1,858.063 4, 1288
2,759 45,002,482 100
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Shares Held By

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties
Bibojee Services (Pyvt.) Lid,
UD Trucks Corporation lapan

fFarmerly Nissan Diesel Motor Co. Ltd. - fapan)

NIT & ICP
Investment Corporation Of Pakistan

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST

Directors, CEQ, their Spouses & Minor Children
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan

Mr. Muhammad Zia

Choudhry Sher Mohammad

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah

Mir. Larbi Hbil.

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Financial Institutions, Modarabas & Mutual funds etc.
National Bank Of Pakistan

Gulf Insurance Company Ltd.

The Pakistan Fund

Azeem Services (Put.) Lid.

Trustees Moosa Lawai Foundation

Trustees Saeedaamin Wake

Trustees Mohamad Amin Wakf Estate

Loads Ltd.

Uni Pak Securities { Pvt) Ltd.

Sarfraz Mahmood (Pvt.) Ltd

Bawa Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Stock Master Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Darson Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Emp Benevolent Fund Trust

Fikree's (SMC-PVT) Ltd.
Wasi Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.
Ismail Abdul Shakoor Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

28,046,417
3,647,090

5,750
1434711

62,569
60,070
69,565
3,805
512
4,312
1,000

1,760
17,800
5312
100

50,000
50,000
35

280
5,000
103
5,000
245,813
8,625
3,500
32

300
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CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND

CDC-TRUSTEE NAFA MULTI ASSET FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC- TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND
Iintermarket Securities Ltd

Standard Capital Securities (Pvt) Ltd

Moosani Securities (Pvt) Ltd

Rang Commaodities

Fawad Yusuf Securities (Pvt) Ltd

Zillion Capital Securities (Pvt) Ltd

Trustee Momin Adamjee Welfare Trust

DIM securities (Pvt) Ltd

Sherman securities (Pvt) Ltd

Adeel & Nadeem Securities [Pvt) Ltd

NCC - Pre Settlement Delivery Account

GMI Capital securities (Pvt) Ltd

J5Global Capital Limited

Trustee-The Kot Addu Power Co .Ltd Employees Pension fund
CDC Trustee NAFA pension fund equity sub-fund account
CDC Trustee NAFA islamic pension fund equity account
Others

Shareholders holding 10% or more
Voting interest in the Company

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Lid.

Shares held

28,046,417

668,500
165,000
85,000
257,000
245,500
9,500
2,500
110,000
308,000
12,000
25,000
50,000
400,000
25,000
102,500
30,000
5,000
18,000
36,000
77,500
8,639,241

45,002,482
e

Percentage

62
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors are pleased to present their report together with consolidated financial
statements of Ghandhara Nissan Limited (GNL) and its subsidiary Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited
for the year ended 30" June 2014.

The Company has annexed consclidated financial statements alongwith its separate financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the International Accounting Standard-27
(Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements)

Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited

Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited (GDFPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 on 25" June 2013. GNL holds 99.99% shares of GDFPL
as on 30" June 2014, to carry on exclusive business of Dongfeng vehicles.

The principal activity of the subsidiary company is assembly/progressive manufacture under toll
assembly agreement with GNL and sale of Dongfeng Commercial vehicles.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Dated: 24" September, 2014 Chief Executive Officer
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AUDITORS' REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of
GHANDHARA NISSAN UMITED [GNL) and its subsidiary company, Ghandhara DF (Private) Umited as at June 30,
2014 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated
statement of changes In equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have
ako expressed separate opinion on the finandal statements of GNL The financlal statements of the subsidary
company was audited by another firm of auditors, whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so
far as it relates o the amounts induded for such company, k based solely on the report of such other auditor.
These finandal statements are the responsibility of GNL's management Our responsibility i to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included
such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary In the
cirumstances.

In our opinton, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of GNL and Its
subsidiary company as at June 30, 2014 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACOOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Osman Hameed Chaudhri Mohammad Maoin Khan
Karachi ; 24th September 2014 Karachi ; 24th September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS

Non cumrent assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Long term |nvestme ms

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tooks
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances
Deposltsand prepayments
Other recelvables

Short term investment
Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

Total assets
EQUTY AND LIABIUTES
Share capltal and reservas
Share capital
Share premium
Ivem credited directly in equity by an Associate
Urapproprlated profit
Equity attributabie to shereholders of
the Holding Company
Non-controling interest
Total equity
Surplus on revalusdon of fixed assets
Liabilties
Non cumrent lablities
Liabllites agalnst assats subject to firance lease
Long term dopasits
Staff benafits
Defered axation

Current Nabllities

Tradeand other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short erm finances

Running finances under mark-up arrangemants

Current portion of long term financing

Current portion of labilities against assets
subject to finance lease

Total labikties
Contingencies and commitrments
Total equity and llabildes

:

Ewowmum

SRGEEEE

BYEN PUNN B

14

fle-stated
Re-sated July 1,
mis 2013 012
- Rupsasin 000 - ————
1,770,743 L3z6108 1,382,669
iie 158 211
490236 422,150 394,182
4864 1223 -
ik 6,709 7,726
21T A% 1,756,388 1,784,788
44,055 32,268 35,980
717386 295,470 565,196
395583 305,183 146 889
oS.704 17,214 13,934
FL | 14673 10215
53,700 24,751 37,748
38 000 B .
aran 48,630 11,854
1440 52528 33452
1,550,622 THO,T1T 555,318
3832614 2547105 2,740,106
450,025 450,025 450,025
40,000 40,000 40,000
62,354 61116 28,767
312540 103,777 54,019
864918 660,918 603811
5 = =
~ @eA®24 660918 603811
1410783 L014,770 1030838
13,006 | 11 1115
2511 9511 8511
94,795 BATS6 815936
158,039 1,010 10,442
275451 99,428 108,104
TEAK 442,993 339938
5178 13,776 21,043
448 261 134,552 405,131
54380 175,419 150,738
- - 7.7
3,556 1,144 6,735
~ L2B1A% = 77L929 1002358
1,556,907 871417 1105457
3,832514 2,547,105 2,740,106

The annesed notes from 1 to 49 form an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Jamil A. Shah
Director
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 aaa RE;:;;”
Note —— Rupess in 000 -—
Revenue 30 25619910 1,852,238
Cost of sales E v {2148,821) (1,626,438)
Gross profit 471,089 225,800
Distribution cost 32 (19,318) (18,562)
Administrative expenses 3 (125,053) (117,986)
Other income E "] 12,695 10,347
Other expenses 35 (19,988) (1.328)
Profit from operations 319,425 98271
Finance cost 36 (50,218) (80,578)
269,207 17,693
Share of profit of an Assodated Company 11,694 28,008
Profit before taxation 280,901 45701
Taxation 7 (95,765) (7.459)
Profit after taxation 185,136 33242
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be redassified to Profit or Loss
Loss on re-measurement of staff retirement
benefit obligation (3,638) (4,572)
Impact of deferred tax 1,200 1,690
(2,436) (3,282)
Total comprehensive income 182,700 34,960
Attributable to:
-Shareholders of the Holding Company 182,701 34,960
-Neon-<controlling interest (1) -
182,700 34,960
——— Rupees
Earnings per share - basic and diluted E! ] 441 0.85

The amexad notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak lamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxaton
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depredation and amortisation
Interest income
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Exchange loss
Share of profit of an Associated Company
Provision for gratulty
Payable balances written back
Operating profit before working capital changes
{Increase) / decrease In current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts
Loans and advances

Depesit and prepayments
Other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Gratuity and compensated absences paid
Long term loans
Finance cost paid
Taxes paid
Netcash (used in) / generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income received

Short term investment
Long term deposits -net
Netcash (used in) / genemted from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shares subscribed by directors of the Subsidia ry Company
Long term financing - repaid
Lease Minances - net
Short term finances - net
Running finances -net
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Netincmase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash aquivalents -at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

The amnexed notesfrom 1 to 49 form an Integral part of these consolidated financial statemeants.

Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Re-satad
2014 2013
~— Rupees in'000 —
280,9m 45,701
54,580 58,222
(z183) {1125)
40,235 77,354
(568) {1,046)
5,733 1,650
{11,594) {28 po8)
10,482 9,863
- (3.542)
377 A86 158,760
3722
269,726
(58,2594)
{4,503)
(1387)
9926
215190
105 346
483 305
(8114)
(84,621)
{45 858)
{17,5%0) 344,712
(14,583) (2414)
1,483 1852
1,450 1,125
(38,000) -
{1.322) 1017
952 1580
5 -
. (77,778)
{1,779) (6,580)
314,269 (271,539)
(125,039) 28,681
187,456 (327.216)
118,914 19076
52,528 33452
171442 52528
Jamil A. Shah
Director
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CONSOLUIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Item
creditad Lirsa ppro- MNan-
:::"': :r:“ directyin  pristed Totsl  conwoling
egquity by an profit interest
Associate
Rupess in 000 ——
Balance as at july 1, 2012
-as previously reported 450,025 40,000 59,767 49,226 599,018
Effect of retrospective application
of change in accounting policy
- nota 5 [net of tax) = . = 4793 4,793
Balance a3 at july 1, 2012
-as re-stated 450,025 40,000 59,767 54,019 608,811
Total comprehensive ncome
for the year ended june 30,
013 ' .
Prafit for the year - - - 38242 33,242 -
Other comprehensive [oss - - . {3282} {3,283)
B - E 34960 34,90
Surphis on revaluation of fixed
assets reailsed during the year
{net of deferred taxation) on
axount of Incremental
depreciation B - . 20,798 20,738 -
Effect of item directly credited
in equity by an Assodated
Company - . 1349 - 1,349
Balance as at June 30, 2013
-as ne-stated 450,025 40,000 61116 109,777 660,918
Transaction with owners
Non-contralling Interest arsing
an business comblnation - - - = &
Total comprehensive ncome
for the year ended June 30,
014
Profit / (loss) for the year - - - 185,137 185,137
Other comprehensive loss - - - {2.436) (2,436)
- = m 182,701 182,701
Surphus on reval uation of fixed
assets realised during the year
(net of deferred taxation] on
account of incremeantal
depreciation - - + 0,062 20,062
Effect of item directly credited
in equity by an Assodated
Company = - L2238 = 1,238 -
Balance as at June 30, 2014 450,025 40,000 62,354 312,540 B54,919
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated fimncial statements.
Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director

64 | GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1.
11

12

13

THE GROUP AND IT5 OPERATIONS

The Group consists of Ghandhara Missan Umited (the Holding Company) and Ghandhara DF (Private)
Limited (the Subsidiary Company).

Ghandhara Nissan Limited

Ghandhara Nissan Limited (the Holding Company] was incorporated on August B, 1981 in Pakistan as a
private limited company and subsequently converted into a public limited company on May 24, 1992, The
registered office of the Company is situated at Ghandhara House, 109/2 Clifton, Karachi. Its manufacturing
facilities are located at Port Qasim, Karachl. The Company's shares are |isted on Karachi and Islamabad
Stock Exchanges.

The principal business of the Holding Company is assembly / progressive manufacture of Nissan passenger
Cars, UD Trucks and Buses, import and marketing of Nissan vehicles and assembly of other vehicles under
contract agreement.

Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited

Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on June 25, 2013 in Pakistan
as a private limited company. The registered office of the Company is situated at Ghandhara House, 109/2
Clifton, Karachi. Its manufacturing fadilities are located st Port Qaslm, Karachi. The principal business of
the Subsidiary Company is to carry-out CKD cperations of DongFeng vehicies.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Conseguent to acquisition of share capital of the Subsidiary Company during the year, the Holding
Company has prepared consolidated financial statements of the Group for the first time with
corresponding figures of the Holding Company's individual financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2013.

Statement of compliance

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are
notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of and directives of the Companles
Ordinance, 1984 shall prevall.

Principle of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group Include the financial statements of Holding
Company and of its Subsidiary Company. The Holding Company's direct interest in the Subsidiary Company
Is 99.99% as at June 30, 2014 (June 30, 2013: Nil).

Consolidated financial statements combine ke tems of assets, labllities, equity, Income, expenses and
cash flows of the Holding Company with those of its Subsidiary, offset (ellminate) the carrying amount of
the Holding Company's investment in Subsidlary and the Holding Company's portion of equity of
Subsidiary and eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the Group.

Mon-controlling interest Is equity in the Subsidiary Company not attributable, directly or Indirectly, to the
Holding Company.
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Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented In Pakistan Rupees which s the functional currency
of the Group and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise specified.

New and amended standards and interpretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

The amendments to the following standards have been adopted by the Company for the first time for the
financial year beginning on July 1, 2013:

Amendment to IAS 1, 'Financial statement presentation” regarding disclosure requirements for
comparative Information. The amendment clarifies the disclosure requirements for comparative
information when an entity provides a third balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period if it
applies an accounting policy retrospectively, and the retrospective application has a material effect on the
information in the balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period, Le. the opening position. No
notes are required to support this balance sheet.

IAS 19, 'Employee benefits’ was revised in June 2011. Revised standard eliminates the corridor approach
and calculates finance costs on a net funding basis. 1AS 19 (Revised) amends the accounting for defined
benefit plan. The Group has applied this standard retrospectively and its impact on the Group's financial
statements has been explained in note 5.

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant

The ather new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are
mandatory for the accounting periods beginning an July 1, 2013 are considered not to be relevant or to
have any significant effect on the Group's financial reporting and are, therefore, not detailed in these
consolidated financial statements,

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not baen early adopted by the Group

The following amendments to published standards are not effective (although avallable for early adoption)
far the financial year beginning on July 1, 2013 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Annual improvements 2012 applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. These
amendments Include changes from the 2010-2012 cycle of annual improvements project that affect seven
standards: IFRS 2, 'Share-based payment’, IFRS 3, 'Business combinations', IFRS B, 'Operating segments’,
IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement’, I1AS 16, 'Property, plant and equipment', 1AS 24, 'Related party
disclosures' and |AS 38, 'Intangible assets'. The Group does not expect to have material impact on its
financial statermments due to application of these amendments.

Annual Improvernents 2013 applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. These
amendments include changes from the 2011-2013 cycle of annual improvements project that affect four
standards: IFRS 1, 'First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards', IFRS 3, "Business
combinations’, IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement' and IAS 40, "Investment property’. Thesa amendments
do not have any impact Group's financial statements.

IAS 32 (Amendment), 'Financial instruments: presentation’, Is applicable on accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014. This amendment updates the application guidance in IAS 32, 'Financial
instruments: presentations', to clarify some of the reguirements for offsetting financial assets and financial
lizbilitles on the reporting date. The Group shall apply this amendment from July 1, 2014 and does not
expect to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.




(d)

!l‘
31

32

41
411

1As 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’, |s applicable on accounting perfods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014, This amendment addresses the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount
of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The Group shall apply this
amendment from July 1, 2014 and this will only affect the disclosures In the consolldated financial
staternents in the avent of impairment.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that
are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Group and therefore, have not been presentad here.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Thesze consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain classes of property, plant and equipment which have been included at revalued amounts and
certain staff retirement benefit which has been recognized at present value as determined by the Actuary.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting palicles and the reported amounts of assets, labilities, Income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period In which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas where various assumptions and astimates are significant to the Group's financial staterments or
where judgement was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

(I} Estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets
(notes 4.1 and 4.2)

(i) Met realisable values of stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade [note 4.5)
(i) Provision for staff benefits (note 4,10)
(W)} Provision for taxation (note 4.12)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these consolidated financlal statements are
set out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented, except as stated In
note 5.

Property, plant and equipment
Dperating fined assats
Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, building on freehald land and plant & machinery
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at
revalued amount and bullding on freehold land and plant & machinery are stated at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset,

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired from use. Normal repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred,

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED | 67



4.1.2

68 | GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED

Depreciation

Depreciation on all items of operating fined assets other than freehold land is charged to income applying
the reducing balance method at the rates stated In note 6.1, Depreciation on additons to operating fixed
assets is charged from the month In which an asset is acquired or capitalised while no depreciation is
charged for the month In which the asset is disposed-off.

The depreciation method and useful lives of items of operating fixed assets are reviewed perindically and
altered If circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change is accounted for as 2
change in accounting estimate by changing depreciation charge for the current and future periods.

Disposal

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of assets and are included in the profit and loss account,

Revaluation of assets

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carmying amount of assets does not
differ materlally from the falr value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets ks credited to the surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets account.

Leased assets

Fixed assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount aqual to the lower of its fair value

and present value of the minimum lease payments al inception of the lease less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that operating fived assets may
be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values excesd the respective
recoverable amount, assets are writben down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment
loss is taken to profit and loss account except for Impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted
against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on
revaluation of that asset.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. All expenditure connected
with specific assets Incurred during Installation and construction perlod are carrled under capltal work-in-
progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and Impalrment loss, If any.

Cost associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group and will probably generate economic benefits exceading costs beyond one year,
are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include staff cost, costs of the software development
team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads,

Subsequent expenditure

Expendrture which enhance or extend the performance of computer software programs beyond their
original specifications are recognised as capital improvement and added to the originzl cost of the
software,

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised using the reducing balance method at the rate stated in note 7.




43
431

4.4

45

Investments
In an Associated Company

Entities in which the Group has significant influence but not control and which are nefther jts subsidiaries
nor joint ventures are Associates and are accounted for by using equity method of accounting.

This investment s Initially recognised at cost, thereafter the carrying amount is Increased or decreased to
recognise the Group's share of profit or loss of an Assoclate. Share of post acquisition profit and loss of an
Associate [s accounted in the Group's profit and loss account. Distribution received from investee reduces
the carrying amount of Investment. The changes in Associate's eguity which are not to be recognised In
the Assoclate's profit and lass account, are recognised directly in the equlty of the Group.

Available for sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to
the need for liquidity or changes in Interest rates are classified as avallable for sale.

Subsequent to Initial recognition at cost, these are re-measured at falr value, with any resultant galn or
loss being recognised In other comprehensive Income. Galns or losses on avallable for sale investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the investments are sold or disposed off, or until the
investments are determined to be impaired, at that time cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
other comprehensive income Is included in current period's profit and loss account.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventory is based on weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence, if any. ltems in transit are
stated at cost comprising of inveice value plus other charges thereon accumulated upto the reporting
date.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of various classes of stock-in-trade is
determined as follows:

Stock category Valuation method
Complete Knock Down Kits Specific cost identification
Complete Bullt-up Units Specific cost identification
Local raw materials At cost on weighted average basis.
Work-in-process and finished goods At cost which comprises of raw materials,

import incidentals, direct labour and
appropriate portion of manufacturing
overheads.

Stock-in-transit At involce price plus all charges paid
thereon upto the reporting date,

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be
received in future and subsequently carried at cost less provision for doubtful debts, if any. Carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date and a provision is made for
doubtful receivables when collection of the amount is no longer probable. Debts considered irrecoverable
are written-off.,
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4.7 Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturites outstanding for
maere than 12 months as at the reporting date, in which case, they are classified as non-current assets.

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flaw statement,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term
highly liguid investments with original maturides of three months or less.

49  Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges are
accounted for on accrual basis.

4,10 Staff benefits
4.10.1 Defined banafit plan

The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme which defines the amount of benefit that an
employes wlll recelve on retirement subject to minlmum qualifying perlod of service under the scheme.
The amount of retirement benefit is usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and salary. Provision for gratuity Iz made annually to cover obligation under the scheme in
accordance with the actuarlal recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation was conducted on June 30,
2014 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an independent Actuary, The liability recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.

The amount arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur.
Past-service cost, if any, are recognised immediately in income.

4,10.2 Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates defined contribution plan {l.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all
Its permanent employees, The Holding Company and the employees make equal monthly contributions to
the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary and cost of living allowance. The assets of the fund are
held separately under the control of trustees.

4.10.3 Employees compensated absences

Employees' entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees upto the
reporting date.

411 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and services, whether or not billed.

4,12 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years and deferred tax.
Current

Provision of current tax Is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Deferred

Deferred tax |5 accounted for using the balance sheet Habllity method In respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of the taxable
praofit.

Deferred tax llabliities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit shall be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax Is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax s charged or credited in the consolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items
credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised at the time when the Group becomas a party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument and derecognised when the Group loses control of contractual
rights that comprise the financial assets and In the case of Rnancial labllities whan the obligation specified
in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabllities is included in the consolidated profit and loss account for the year.

Financlal instruments carrled on the consolidated balance sheet includes long term loans, long term
deposits, trade debts, loans & advances, short term depasits, short term investment, other recelvables,
cash and bank balances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, long term depasits, trade and
other payables, accrued mark-up, short term finances and running finances. All financial assets and
liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and recelved
respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost
or cost as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed In the individual
policy statements associated with each item,

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle either on a net basls, or to realise the asset and settle the llability simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable and contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed unless the probability of an
outflow of respurces embodying economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration recelved or recelvable and Is reduced for allowances such as taxes, sales returns and
commission. Revenue from different sources Is recognised on the following basls:
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Trading

- Vehicles are treated as sold when invoiced and delivered. Commission Income Is recognised on the
basls of shipment.

- Spare part sales are recorded on the basis of dispatches made to the customers.

Manufacturing
- Vehicles are treated as sold when invoiced and dispatched to customers.

Other
- Return on bank deposits [s accounted for on accrual basis.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use, All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the peried in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions In foreign currencies are transiated Into reporting currency at the rates ot exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and llabilities denominated In forelgn currencies
are translated into reporting currency equivalents using year end forelgn exchange rates. Non monetary
assets and llabllities are translated using exchange rate that existed when the values were determined.
Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are taken to consolidated profit and loss account
currently.

impairment loss

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to ldentify clrcumstances
Indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for Impairment losses. If any
indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assels are estimated and impairment losses or
reversals of impairment |osses are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account. Reversal of
impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the
Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Group considers itself to be a
single reportable segment; however, certain information, as required by the approved accounting
standards, is presented in note 44 to these consolidated financial statemeants.

Eamnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamnings per share (EP5) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and other appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in which they are approved.
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

IAS 19 (Revised) - 'Employee benefits' effective for annual perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
amends the accounting for Group's defined beneafit plan. The revised standard requires past service cost to
be recognised immediately in the profit or loss and replaces the Interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation and the expected return on plan assets with a net interest cost based on the net defined benefit
asset or liability and the discount rate, measured at the beginning of the year.




Further, @ new term "re-measurements" has been introduced which is made up of actuarial gains and
losses, the difference between actual Investment returns and the return Implied by the net interest cost.
The revised standard elimlnates the corridor approach and requires "re-measurements” to be recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in
the periods in which they accur.

The application of 1AS 19 (Revised) only affect the Holding Company's policy for 'Staff benefits - defined
benefit plan' which stands amended as follows:

The amount arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur.,
Past-service cost, if any, are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

The change In accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the
requirements of LAS 8 "Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’ and comparative
figures have been restated. The effects have been summarised below:

As at June 30, 2013 As at July 1, 2012
As As Re- I"":' As Re-
previously re-siated  siatomaent .y re-stated  statoment
raported reported
-=—— Rupees in '000 —— ~——— Rupees in '000 ——
Effect on balance shest
Unappropriated profit 108,409 109,777 1,368 49,226 54,019 4,783
Staff benefits 90,828 88,758 (2,072) 89,198 81,936 {7,262)
Deferred taxation 308 1,010 T04 7973 10,442 2469
For the year ended June 30, 2013
As
As Re-
praviously
re-stated  statement
reported
Effect on profit and loss account s Rupes [0 ‘000 ———
Cost of sales 1626373 1626438 85
Distribution cost 18,588 18,562 3
Administrative expensas 117,836 117,886 150
Taxation 7,534 7,459 (75)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement loss of stafl
reliremeant banafit obligation - {4.872) (4,972
—_——
Impact of deferred tax - 1,680 1,690

The effect of change in accounting policy, due to application of 1A5 19 (Revised) on "earnings per share' s
immaterial in the overall context of these consolidated financial statements. There Is no cash flow impact
as a result of the retrospective application of change in accounting policy.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2014 2013
Note = Rupees In '000 -—
Operating fixed assets 61 1,759,365 1,326,108
Capital work-in-progress: 6.7 11,378 -
1,770,743 1,326,108
_ o ———— |
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6.2

6.3

6.5

6.6

6.7

Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant & machinery of the Holding Company had previously
been revalued on June 30, 1997, June 30, 1999, January 1, 2004 and June 30, 2009.

The Holding Company, 25 at June 30, 2014, has again revalued its freehold land, buildings on freehold land,
plant & machinery and assembly Jlgs. The revaluation exercise has been carried out by independent valuer -
Harvester Services (Pvt.) Ltd., (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' Assoclation and Leasing Association of
Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. Freehold land has been revalued on the basis of current market
price whereas bulldings on freehold land, plant & machinery and assembly Jigs have been revalued on the
basls of depreciated market value. The appraisal surplus arlsen on latest revaluation exercise aggregating
Rs.468.345 million has been incorporated in the books in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying amount of each
revalued class of operating fixed assets would have been as follows:

2014 2013
Note = Rupees in ‘000 —
Freehold land 61,456 61,456
Building on freehold land 127,683 134,403
Plant and machinery 135,395 142,521
Assembly Jigs 2,793 i
Deprecliation charge has been
allocatad as follows:
Cost of sales 311 51,422 53,021
Administrative expenses 33 3,118 5,148
54,540 58,169

The Holding Company's present and future land, building on freehold land and plant & machinery are
under mortgaged / hypothecated charged upto Rs.1,647 million (2013: As.1,647 milllon) with banks for
shart term finance facilities.

The details of operating fixed assets disposed-off are as follows:

Accumu-
Particular of Cost lated I"“I Eale Gain ';:' Particilar of
nssets deprec- i proceeds buysrs
latlon Winpors
Rupees in ‘000
Vahlcles
Nissan Sunny 1,170 838 531 568 35 MNegotiation Ghandhara industries Limited
- @in Associabed Comgpary
Miggan Sunny 1,045 B4B 197 481 284 Company M. Agisl Amjad Ghanl
pokicy - Employes

Missan Sunmy Bra BB6 187 4568 268 Company Mr. Aglel Amjad Ghani

poficy - Employos

June 30,2014 3088 2,173 915 1,483 568

June 30, 2013 3,184 2,388 ane 1,852 1,046
—

2014 2013

Capital work-in-progress: Note — Rupees in ‘000 —
Machinery 6.7.1 6,705 -
Advance payments against vehicles 4,673 -
11,378 =
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During the year, the Subsidiary Company has imported machinery for the purpose of assembling.
However, the same is in the process of installation and, therefore, has been classified under work-in-
progress.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2014 2013
Note ~— Rupaes In '000 —
These represent computer software licenses.
Cost 500 500
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of the year 342 289
Add: charge for the year 13 40 53
At end of the year 382 342
Net book value 118 158
Rate of amortisation (%) 25 25
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Associated Company
Ghandhara Industries Limited - Equity basis
5,166,168 {2013; 5,166,168) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each
Equity held: 24.25% (2013; 24.25%)
Cost 92,635 92,635
Share of post acquisition losses {5.849) {17,543)
86,786 75,092
Share of items directly credited in the
equity of Asscciated Company 62,354 61,116
Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets of Associated Company 356,595 301,481
Dividend received to date (15,499) (15,499)
490,236 422,190
Others - available for sale
Automotive Testing & Training Center
{Private] Limited
187,500 (2013: 187,500) ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each - cost 1,875 1,875
Provision for impalrment {1,875) (1,875)
430,236 422,190

The above figures are based on unaudited condensed Interim financial information of the investee
company as at March 31, 2014, The latest financial statements of the Investee company as at June 30,
2014 are not presently avallable,

Summarised financial information of the investee company as at March 31, 2014 is as follows:




B3

91

11.

As at March As at March

31, 2014 31, 2013
— Rupess in "000 -—
Total assets 4,020,286 4,123,583
Total liabilities 2,011,546 2,395,182
Accumulated profit 120,817 69,081
Nine months period ended
March 31, March 31,
2014 2013
— Rupees In '000 —
Revenues 1,657,921 2,126,104
Profit before taxation 9,807 118,178
—_—— _——
Profit after taxation 13,170 92,680

The market value of investment as at June 30, 2014 was Rs.173.945 million (2013: Rs.94.799 million).

LOMNG TERM LOANS - Unsecured, 2014 2013
considered good Note = Rupees in "000 ——
Loans to employees - other than executive 9.1 6,258 1,912
Amounts recoverable within one year and
grouped under current assets (1,394) (689)
4,864 1,223

These represent Interest free loans provided to employees as per terms of employment for varlous

purposes. These Ipans are repayable on monthly instalments, which varies from case to case.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2014 2013
—— Rupees in 000 —
Deposit held with / against:
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 25 5
- lease facilities 1,732 440
- utifities E,174 B.144
- pthers 100 100
8,031 6,709
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 43,940 32,153
Spares and loose tools 115 115

44,055 32,268
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12.  STOCK-IN-TRADE 2014 2013

— Rupees in '000 —
Raw materials
In hand 355,455 48,727
In transit 302,388 168,567
657,843 217,294
Waork in process - 24,320
Finlshed goods
in hand
Veehicles - Trucks / Buses 15,693
Spare parts 12,246 6,617
In transit
Complete Bullt-up Units - Trucks 31,604 47,239
53,543 53,856
717,386 295,470

12.1  The present and future stock-in-trade, trade debts and receivables aggregating Rs.1.715 million (2013:
Rs.1,715 million) are under pledge / |oint hypothecation charge with banks against short term finances and
running finances.

13. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured, 2014 2013
considered good Note —— Rupees in 000 —
Vehicles and assembly charges 131 393,093 302,104
Spare parts 2,490 3,079
395,583 305,183
131 Trade debts include the following amounts
due from Associated Companies:
Ghandhara industries Umited 91,117 69,151
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited 5 57
91,122 69,208
13.2 The ageing of the trade debts recelvable fram Assoclated Companies as at the reporting date are as
fallows:
20148 2013
— Rupees in "000 —
Up to 3 months 54,013
3 to 6 months 37,109 69,151
more than 6 manths . 57
91,122 69,208
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LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured, 2014 2013

considered good Note —— Rupees in ‘000 ~—
Current portion of long term loans | 1,394 B89
Loans to:
- gxecutives 14.1 & 14.2 1,910 -
- employees other than executives 14.1 315 236
2,285 236
Advances to:
- executives 254 56
- gmployees 1,785 880
- suppliers, contractors and others 19,986 15,353
22,025 16,289
25,704 17,214

These represent interest free general loans and special loans provided to employees in accordance with
Group's policy and have maturities upto twelve months,

Reconciliation of carrying amount of 2014 2013
loans to executives == Rupees in '000 —
Balance at beginning of the year - 603
Disbursemants 2,764 -
1,764 603
Repayments (854) {603)
Balance at end of the year 1,910 -

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year ended June 30,
2014 from executives aggregated to Rs.2.095 million {2013: Rs.0.500 millian).

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 2014 2013
s—— Rupees in ‘000 —
Deposits against lease facilities 440 -
Prepald
- rent [Bibojee Services (Private) Limited -
the Ultdmate Holding Company] 9,118 8,550
- insurance 4,948 3,052
14,066 11,602
Current account balances with statutory authorities 1,215 3,07
15,721 14,673
OTHER RECEIVABLES - Conslderad good
Sales tax refundable / adjustable 36,128 12,480
Bank guarantee margin 613 613
Security deposits and earnest money 13,479 9,235
Accrued interest 733 -
Others 2,747 2,419
53,700 24,751
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SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

This represents investment In @ Term Deposit Recelpt (TDR) having face value of Rs.38.00 million placed
with National Bank of Pakistan for a term of 120 days. This TOR carries mark-up at the rate of 7% per
annum and is maturing on October 13, 2014,

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2014 2013
Note == Rupees in '000 ——
Cash in hand 1
Cash at banks in:
- current accounts 111,055 456,523
- deposit accounts 18.1 10,298 8917
- term deposits receipts 18.2 54,000
175,353 56,440
Provision for doubtful bank balance 183 (3,912) (3,912)
171,441 52,528
171,442 52,528

These, during the year, carry mark-up at the rates of B.BB% and 9.00% (2013: 9.00% and 11.50%) per
annum.

Term deposit receipts (TDRs) have maturity days ranging from eighty three to ninety three days from
respective dates of acquisition, These TDRs carry mark-up at rates of 7,00% and 8,50% per annum,

This represents provislon made against bank balance held with Indus Bank Limited whose operations were
ceased by the State Bank of Pakistan and is under liquidation. The above balance is net of Rs.42.585
million deposited in the deposit account and margin account against four letters of credit due in May and
June 2000. Despite full payments and several reminders, the paymant of above letters of credit has not
been made to the supplier of goods, The Holding Company considers that It has discharged its obligation
against the said letters of credit,

SHARE CAPITAL 2014 2013
—— Rupees in '000 —

Authorized capital
£0,000,000 {2013; 80,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each 800,000 BOO,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2014 2013
- No. of shares —
14,800,000 14,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid in cash 148,000 148,000
200,000 200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,000 2,000
30,002,500 30,002,500 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
Issued for acquisition 300,025 300,025
45,002,500 45,002,500 450,025 450,025

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited (the Ultimate Holding Company) holds 62.32% (2013: 62.32%) share
capltal of the Holding Company.




194  Ordinary shares heid by other related 2014 2013

parties as at year end: Note — Number of shares —
Universal Insurance Company Limited 5,000 5,000
UD Trucks Corporation, Japan 3,647,090 3,647,090
3,652,090 3,652,090
— - - —
20. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 014 2013
FIXED ASSETS - Net ~—— Rupees in "000 —
Surplus on revaluation of the Holding
Company's fixed assets 20.1 1,054,188 713,289
Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets of an Assoclated Company 8 356,595 301,481

1,410,783 1,014,770
20.1  Surplus on revaluation of the Holding

Company's fixed assets
Balance at beginning of the year 919,950 951,987
Surplus arisen on revaluation carried-out
during the year 6.2 468,345
Transferred to unappropriated profit on
account of incremental depreciation for the year {30,397) {31,997}
1,357,938 919,990
Related deferred tax of:
- balance at beginning of the year 206,701 223,979
- surplus arisen during the year 113,159 -
- Incremental depreciation for the year (10,335) {11,159)
- effect of change In tax rate (5,775) (6,079)
- balance at end of the year 303,750 206,701
Balance at end of the year - mm- ?13,135-
21. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE
Balance at beginning of the year 1,260 7,840
Assets acquired durling the year 17,315 -
Repaid / adjusted during the year (1,913) (6,580)
16,662 1,260
Current portion grouped under current liabllities (3,656) (1,149)
Balance at end of the year 13,006 111

21.1 These represent vehicles acquired under finance lease / diminishing musharakah arrangements from
various financial institutions. Rentals are payable on monthly and gquarterly basis. These finance facilities,
during the year, were subject to finance cost at the rates ranging from 15.22% to 17.32% (2013: 12.63% to
1B.00%) per annum. These facilities are secured against title of the leased vehicles in the name of lessor.
The Group intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased vehicles upon completion of the lease
terms.

The future minimum lease payments to which the Group is committed under the agreements will be due
as follows:
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Upto From one Upto  From one

Particulars one to five 2014 one to five 2013
year years year years
Rupees in "000
Minimum lease payments 5,695 15,582 21,287 1,202 112 1,314
Finance cost allocated to
future periods (2,039) (2,586) (4,625) (53) (1) (54)
Prasent value of minimum
lease payments 3,656 13,006 16,662 1,149 111 1,260
LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2014 2013
Note —=— Rupees In '000 —
Dealers’ deposit 2.1 9,000 9,000
Vendors 111 111
Others 500 500
9,611 9,611
eSS

These deposits are interest free and are not refundable during subsistence of dealership.

STAFF BENEFITS Re-stated
2014 2013
Note e Rupees in "000 —
Pravision for gratulty 3.1 70,404 61,068
Provision for compensated absences 24,391 27,688
84,795 BB, 756

The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme which defines the amount of benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement subject to minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme.
Obligation under the scheme as per the latest actuarial valuation |s as follows:

Re-stated
Amount recognised In the balance sheet 2014 2013
Is as follows —— Rupees In "'000 —
Present value of defined benefit obligation 70,356 60,895
Benefits payable 48 173
Net llabliity at end of the year 70,404 61,068
- — —

Met liability at beginning of the year 61,068 51,575
Charge to profit and loss account 10,482 9,963
Re-measurement recognised In

other comprehensive income 31,636 4,972
Payments made during the year (4,782) (5,442)
et liability at end of the year 70,404 61,068




3.1.2

2313

23.1.7

13.1.8

Re-stated

Movement in the present value 2014 2013
of defined benafit obligation — Rupees in '000 —
Balance at beginning of the year 60,895 48,553
Current service cost 4,333 3,651
Interest cost 6,149 6,312
Benefits paid (4,657) {2,458)
Benefits due but not paid - {125)
Re-measurement on obligation 3,636 4,972
Balance at end of the year 70,356 60,895
Expense recognised in profit and
loss account
Currant service cost 4,333 3,651
Interest cost 6,149 6,312
10,482 9,963
Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income
Experience adjustments 3,636 4,972
—_— L ———
Actuarial assumptions used 2014 2013
== % per annum —
Discount rate 13.25 10.50
Expected rate of increase in future salaries 13.25 10.50
Mortality rates (for death in service) SLUC EFU
2001-2005 61-66
Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The calculation of defined benefit obligation Is sensitive to assumptions set-out in note 23.1.5. The
following table summarlses how the net defined benefit abligation at the end of the reporting period
would have Increased / (decreased) as a result of change In respective assumptions.

Change In Increase in Decrease in
assum- assumption assumption
ption — Rupaes in ‘000 —
Discount rate 1.00% 65,033 74,658
Increase in future salaries 1.00% 74,672 64,941

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. in practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected wnit credit
method at the end of reporting period] has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability
recognised within the balance sheat.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
to the previous period.

Based on actuary's advice, the expected charge for the year ending June 30, 2015 amounts to Rs.13.256
million.

The weighted average duration of the scheme is 7 years.
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23.1.9 Historical information

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Rupees |n "000
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 70,356 60,895 48,553 44,758 46,396
Experience adjustment
o Ghiprion TN T Ty L
23.1.10 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan:
“I::" 1-2 years || 25 years Mr: Totd
ysar ye yea Yea
Rupees in '000
As at June 30, 2014 17175 6.575 39,855 773,385 837,100
24, DEFERRED TAXATION - Net Re-stated
2014 2013
The liability for deferred taxation comprises of MNote —— Rupees In '000 —
temporary differences relating to:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 50,806 52,753
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 303,750 206,701
- lease finances B 530
- provision for gratuity (23,584} (20,764)
- provision for compensated absences (8,531) {9,414)
- pravision for bank balances {1,291) {1,330)
- minimum tax recoverable against
normal tax charge In future years (75,912) (49,502)
- xcess of alternative corporate tax over
corporate taxes recoverable in future years (17,946) -
- unused tax losses (70,07a) (177,964)
158,039 1,010
5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2014 2013
— Rupees in "000 —
Trade creditors 86,198 82,703
Bills payable 241,038 255,038
Accrued llabilitdes 25.1 20,376 25,300
Refundable - CKD / CBU business 1,403 1,403
Customers' credit balances 5.2 288,616 27.696
Commission 17,918 5,838
Unclaimed gratuity 231 231
Dealers' deposits against vehicles 52,800 5,000
Custom duties payable 2,263 -
Due to related parties 5.3 21,894 24,362
Withholding tax 1,214 565
Warkers' profit particlpation fund 54 14,484 962
Workers' walfare fund 5,512 366
Retantion money 103 103
Unclaimed dividend 961 961
Dealer deposit payable on cancellation of dealership 1,000 1,000
Others 255 & 15.6 13,370 7465

765,381 442,993
S
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Includes Rs.13.704 million (2013: Rs.15.463 million) which pertains to a key management person.

These represent advances from customers against sale of trucks and carry no mark-up.

Due to related parties Note
UD Trucks Corporation - lapan
Universal Insurance Company Limited

The General Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited

Gammon Pakistan Limited
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan

Workers' profit participation fund
Balance at beginning of the year
Allocation for the year 35

Interest on funds utilised in the
Company's business 36

Payment made during the year
Balance at end of the year

B
Includes Rs.3.675 million (2013: Rs.1.043 million) which pertain to key management personnel.

2014 2013
— Aupeaes In "000 —
71,676 5,742
3,958 3,708
E} 1,504
an 623
9,885 12,385
21,894 24,362
962 -
14,484 962
a7 -
15,533 962
{1,048) =
14,484 962

Includes deposits and instaiments under the Holding Company's staff vehicle policy aggregating Rs.2.654

million (2013: Rs.0.566 million).
ACCRUED MARK-UP

Mark-up accrued on:
- short term finances
- running finances

SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured

Finance against imported merchandise
- Mational Bank of Pakistan 271
- The Bank of Khyber 27.2

Finance against trust receipts

- National Bank of Pakistan 271
Short term demand finance

- Faysal Bank Limited 1.3

2014 2013

-— Rupees |n ‘000 —
2,973 2,228
2,205 11,548
5,178 13,776
- 53,601
181,245 24,371
181,245 77,972
225,743 11,737
41,873 44,883
448,861 134,592
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The Holding Company has arranged Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) and Finance Against
Trust Receipts [FATR) facilities of an aggregate limit of Rs.500 million (2013 : Rs.300 million) from National
Bank of Pakistan. Thess facilities are secured against effective pledge of imported goods, duly signed trust
receipts and cumulative charge (equitable and hypothecation) over the Holding Company's land, building
and plant & machinery for Rs.467 million. These facilities carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR
plus 200 basis points. FIM and FATR are repayable within 120 days of disbursement / creation. These
finance facilities are available upto October 31, 2014.

The Holding Company has also arranged FIM of Rs.250 million [2013: Rs.100 million) from the Bank of
Khyber. This finance facility is secured against effective pledge of imported consignments and carries mark-
up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 basis points. FIM is adjustable within 120 days of disbursemant
[/ ereation. This finance facilitv is available upto December 31, 2014.

The Holding Company had arranged short term loan of Rs.330 million from Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank)
agalnst outstanding Import bills. Originally this loan was repayable In monthly Instalments of Rs.22 million
each. The Holding Company during the prior years had repald instalments aggregating Rs.215 million and
balance of Rs.115 million was renewed by the Bank. The Helding Company has made principal payments of
Rs.73.127 million il June 30, 2014 of this renewed finance facility. Year-end balance of this finance facility
has been again renewed by the Bank. This facility is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.367
million on stocks and receivables, ranking charge of Rs.434 million over stocks & receivables and ranking
charges of Rs.400 million on plant and machinery. The short term loan carries mark-up at the rate of six
months KIBOR plus 1.80% per annum.

RUNNING FINANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2014 2013
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured Note == Rupees in '000 ——
Balance as at June 30, 28.1 54,380 179,419

Running finance facilities available to the Holding Company from commercial banks under mark-up
arrangements aggregate to Rs.375 million (2013: Rs.423.535 million) and are secured by way of equitable,
hypothecation and pari passu charge over fixed and current assets of the Holding Company. These, during
the current financial year, carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 11.06% to 12.17% (2013; 11.28% to
13.95%) per annum. The arrangements are expiring on March 31, 2015,

The facllities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2014 aggregated to Rs.1,562
million {2013; Rs.635 million) of which the amount remained unutilised at the year-end was Rs.774.362
million (2013: Rs.120.070 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Certain cases have been filed against the Holding Company in respect of employees matters. These cases
are pending in labour courts, high court and before National Industrial Relations Commission, Karachi. The
management is confident that the autcome of these cases will be in the Holding Company's favour.

Commitment in respect of irrevocable letters of credit as at June 30, 2014 aggregate to Rs.813.560 million
(2013: Rs.455.004 million).

Guarantees aggregating Rs.10.303 million (2013: Rs.59.926 million) are issued by banks of the Holding
Company to various government and other institutions.
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Trading activity

Export

Less:
- sales tax
- discount and commission

COST OF SALES

Finished goods at beginning of the year
Cost of goods manufactured
Purchases - trading goods

Finished goods at end of the year

Cost of goods manufactured

Work in process at beginning of the year
Raw materials and parts consumed
Fabrication of contract vehicles

Stores and spares consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits
Transportation

Repair and maintenance

Depreciation

Material handling

Insurance

Communication

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and entertainment

Power generation costs

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Royalty expense

Plant security

Other manufacturing expenses

Work In process at end of the year

014 2013
Mote — Rupees in '000 —
2,770,406 1,719,408
30,965 -
2,801,371 1,719,408
402,538 237,755
15,850 16,075
442 388 253,830
2,358,983 1,465,578
317,524 470,266
2,902 -
320,426 470,266
45,175 53,953
13,324 29,653
59,499 B3,606
260,927 386,660
2,619,910 1,852,238
Re-stated
2014 2013
-— Rupees in '000 —
53,856 57,846
311 1,905,707 1,212,946
248,801 409,502
2,154,508 1,622 448
12 (59.543) (53,856)
2,148 821 1,626,438
24,320 25579
312 1,597,503 846,952
7,881 9,450
27,908 13,830
313 114,548 117,089
8,209 11,566
2,883 6,688
6.4 51,422 53,021
1,160 a7
3492 6,451
476 554
414 296
664 1,020
47,109 34,589
910 641
8,469 3.B62
4,698 3,701
1,641 1,880
1,905,707 1,237,266
- (24,320}
1,905,707 1,212,946
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Raw materials and parts consumed

Stocks at beginning of the year
Purchases

Stocks at end of the year

2014 2013

e RUpEES in 000 ——
48,727 281,287

1,904,231 714,392

1,952,958 995 679

{355,455) (48,727)

1,597,503 946,952

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.3.160 million (2013: Rs.2.937 million) and Rs.2.327 million (2013:

Rs.1.971 million) In respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Note
Salaries and benefits 321
Utifities
Insurance

Repalr and malntenance

Travelling 2nd entertalnment
Telephone and postage

Vehicle running

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Security

Godown and forwarding

Sales promotion expenses

Others

Re-stated
2014 2013
—— Rupees in "000 —
13,037 12,889
203 294
- 15
76 347
2,627 3,229
148 136
743 544
287 103
511 360
281 143
1,129 426
276 76
19,318 18,562

Salaries and benefits include Rs.0.167 miilion (2013: Rs.0.155 million) and Rs.0.823 million {2013: Rs.0.735
milllan) in respect of staff retirement gratuity 2nd staff provident fund respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 33.1
Pre-incorporation expneses

Utllities

Rent, rates and taxes

Directors’ fee

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation and amortisation 6IART
Auditors’ remuneration 332
Advertising

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charges

Vehicle running

Telephone and postage

Printing and stationery

Subscription

Security expenses

Donation 333
Others

Re-stated
2014 2013
—— Rupeas In ‘000 —

BE,605 75,724

323 -
4,887 3,344
7,627 7,476
450 380
B52 1,663
1,505 1,007
3,158 5,201
586 500
374 561
3,336 6,638
1,204 1,749
3,193 3314
3,058 2,531
2,773 1,614
1,554 1,576
819 709
415 958
2,274 3,041
125,053 117,986




33.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs.7.155 million (2013: Rs.6.871 million) and Rs.1.831 million {2013: Rs.2.057
millian) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

2014 2013
332 Auditors' remuneration = Rupees [n 000 -—
Audit fee
Hameed Chaudhri & Co. 250 250
Muniff Ziauddin & Cao, 50 250
Junaidy Shoaib Asad 86 -
586 500

333 Donation of Rs.Nil [2013: As.0.958 million) charged in these financial statements is payable to Wagf-e-Kuli
Khan, 2nd Floor, Gammon House, 400-2, Chour Chowk, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi (the Trust). Mr. Raza
Kuli Khan Khattak, Chairman of the Holding Company, Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak, Chief Executive of the
Holding Company and Lt Gen. {Retd.) Ali Kull Khan Khattak, Director of the Holding Company, are trustees

of the Trust,
34.  OTHER INCOME 2004 2013
Note —— Rupees In "000 —
Income from financial assets
Interest income 34.1 2,183 1,125
Income from non-financial assets
Scrap sales - net of sales tax 391 1,814
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 6.6 568 1,046
Payable balances written back - 3,942
Commission Incomea 5,254 T05
Others 769 1,715
10,512 9,222
12,695 10,347

34.1 Interest at the rates ranged from 7.00% to 9.00% (2013: 9.00% to 11.50%) per annum has been earned
during the year on term deposlt recelpts and deposit accounts.

35. OTHER EXPENSES 2014 2013
Note —— Rupees In "000 —
Woaorkers' profit participation fund 254 14,484 962
Workers' welfare fund 5,504 366
15,988 1,328
36. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- long term financing - 4,926
- short term finances 16,920 39,965
- running finances 22,575 32,042
Lease finance charges 653 421
Exchange loss 5,733 1,650
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 25.4 g7 -
Bank and other charges 4,250 1,574
50,218 80,578
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TAXATION Re-stated

2014 2013
— Rupees In '000 —
Current
- for the year 37.1 44,9584 9,314
- for prior year (64) (192)
44,920 9,122
Deferred
- origination and reversal of temporary differences 46,251 (7,005)
- impact of change in tax rate 4,554 5,342
50,845 (1,663)
95,765 7,459

Provision for the current year mainly represents alternative corporate tax payable under section 113C and
tax deducted under sections 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

EARNINGS PER SHARE Re-stated
2014 2013

Basic earnings per share — Rupees in '000 —

Net profit for the year 185,136 38,242
= Number of shares -

Weighted average ordinary shares In lssue 45,002,500 45,002,500
——— Rupees ——

Earnings per share 411 0.85

Diluted eamings per share

No figures for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any instruments
carrying options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amount charged In these consolidated financial statements in respect af remuneration of the
Holding Company's Chief Executive, directors and executives are given below:

2014 2013
coonet . Dirsctor Executives e | Director Executives
Rupees in "000

Managerial remuneration 9,000 3,600 37,351 9000 3600 33,628
Contribution to provident

fund 456 . 1,694 456 . 1850

Gratulty : 1,263 228 , 1,445

Uiiities " : 2,645 : . 2439

9,684 3600 42953 0084 3600 38062

Number of parsons 1 1 23 1 1 20




39.1 No remuneration has been pald or is payable by the Subsidlary Company on account of remuneration of
Chief executive officer, directors and executives for the year.

39.2 The Chief Executive of the Holding Company s also entitled for the use of the Company malntained car,
security expenses, telephone expenses and medical expenses at actual. He |z also entitled to receive other
benefits as per the Holding Company pollcy applicable to all management employees.

33,3 Director and certain Executives of the Holding Company are also provided with free use of the Company
maintained vehicles.

39.4 Aggregate amount charged in the consolldated financial statements for meeting fee to Directors of the
Holding Company was Rs.0.450 million (2013: Rs.0.380 million).

40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties comprise of the Ulimate Holding Company, Associated Companies, directors of the Group,
companies in which directors are interested, staff retirement benefit plan, key management personnel
and close members of the families of the directors & key management personnel. The Group in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related
parties are shown under receivables and payables. Significant transactions with related parties are as

follows:
Nature of 2014 2013
Nase transaction — Rupees in ‘000 —
(I) Ultimate Holding Company
Bibojee Senvices Rent of head office 5,400 5,400
{Privale) Limited Sale of runway sweepers - 76,966
(ii) Associated Companies
Universal Insurance
Company Limited Insurance premium 250 6,349
The General Tyre and Purchase of tyres, tubes
Rubber Company of and flaps 38,823 15,859
Pakistan Limited Sale of paris 59 -
Bannu Woollen Mills
Limited Sale of parts - 159
Ghandhara Industries Contract assembly 117,257 140,662
Limited Fabrication of vehicles 1,241 1,320
Sale of parts - 2
Repair of vehicles - 504
Sale of fleet vehicle 566 -
Rehman Cotton Mills
Limited Sale of parts 5 117
Gammon Pakistan
Limited Office rent 1,500 1,500
Janana De Malucho Eamest money received
Textile Mills Limited and paid back for sale
of trucks - 20,000
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Nature of 2014 2013

transaction == Rupees in ‘000 =

(iil} Others
UD Trucks Corporation, Royaity 8,469 3,882

Japan Purchases of complete

knock down kits 1,460,303 527919

Staff provident fund Contribution made 4.981 4,763
Key management Remuneration and other

personnel ghort term benefils 28,774 28,034

Sale of fleet vehicles a7 -

PLANT CAPACITY
The Holding Company

Agalnst the designed annual preduction caplcity of 6,000 vehicles at car plant, on single shift basls, the
Holding Company has assembled 803 {2013: 636) vehicles of Land Rover and also processed 1,115 (2013:
1,042) Truck cabs through paint shap. Due to low demand of vehlcles on account of economic slow down,
the plant capacity remalned under-utilized, Against the production capacity of 2,500 trucks and buses on
single shift basis, the Company produced 1,246 [2013: 1,146) trucks and buses of UD and Isuzu. Capacity of
trucks and buses production facility also remained under-utilized due to low demand on account of
ecanomic slow dowr,

The Subsidiary Company
The Subsidiary Company |s in the process of establishing its manufacturing and assembling facllities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial Instruments:
- credit risk;
- liguidity risk; and
- market risk (Including currency risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk),

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and overview of Group's
risk management framework. The board s also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk
management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties
fall completely to perform as contracted [/ fall to discharge an obligation / commitment that it has entered
into with the Group.

Credit risk primarily arises from long term loans, long term depaosits, trade debts, loans and advances,
other receivables, short term investment and balances with banks. Te manage exposure to credit risk in
respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experlence and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are
obtained from certain parties. Credit risk on bank balances Is limited as the counter parties are banks with
reasonably crediting ratings.

The maximum expesure to credit risk as at June 30, 2014 along with comparative is tabulated below:




2014 2013

—— Rupees in "000 -—
Long term loans 4,864 1,223
Long term deposits 6,299 6,269
Trade debts 395,583 305,183
Loans and advances 3,679 925
Other receivables 17,572 122711
Short term investment 38,000 -
Bank balances 171,441 52,528

637,438 378,399
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region is as
follows:

2014 2013

-—— Rupees in 000 -—
Demestic 395,279 305,183
Export 304 -

395,583 305,183
The agelng of trade debts at the reporting date Is as follows:
Up to 3 months 122,917 193,915
3 to 6 months 112,318 95,712
maore than & months 160,348 15,556

395,583 305,183

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the Group
belleves that trade debts past due over six months do not require any Impalrment.

422 Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group's approach Is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficlent liquidity to meet its
llabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management Implies malntaining sufficlent cash and cash
equivalent and ensuring the availability of adegquate credit facilities. The Group's treasury department
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines avallable.
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Carrying Less than Between1i1 5years
amount 1year to5years and above

June 30, 2014 Rupees In '000
Liabilities against assats

subject to finance lease 16,662 3,658 13,006 -
Long term deposits 9,611 . - 8,611
Trade and other payables 457,292 457,292 - -
Accrued mark-up 5178 5178 - -
Short term finances 448,861 448,861 - .
Running finances under

mark-up arrangements 54 380 54 380 - -

991,984 969,387 13,0086 9,611
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Carrying Less than Between1 5years

amount iyear toGyears andabove
June 30, 2013 —————— Rupees in '000
Liabilities against assats
subject to finance lease 1,260 1,149 111 :
Long term deposits 9,611 - - 9.611
Trade and other payables 413,404 413,404 - .
Accrued mark-up 13,776 13,776 - -
Short term finances 134,592 134,582 - -
Running finances under
mark-up arangements 178419 179.419 - -
752,062 742,340 111 8,611
Mariet risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk managemeant is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable
parametears, while optimising the returm.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that falr value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to currency risk on import of raw materials,
stores & spares and commission Income denominated in U.S. Dollar, Japanese Yen and Chinese Yuan
Renminbl (RMB). The Group's exposure to forelgn currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Rupess Yen us.s RMB
June 30, 2014 in ‘000
Trade and other payables 227346 188,049 - 4,113
Trade debts {304) = 3
Net exposure 227,042 188,049 (3) 4,113

Rupees Yen uss RMB
June 30, 2013 in ‘000
Trade and other payables 256,796 105,682 &0 8,962
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

lnpurttn‘ date rate
2014 2013

Yen to Rupee 0.9748 f0.9728 0.9934 /0.9974
U.5. % to Aupee 98.55 98.8/986
RMB to Rupees 1591 16.20

Sensitivity analysis

At the reporting date, if Rupee had strengthened by 5% against Yen, Dollar and RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher by the amount shown
below mainly as a result of net forelgn exchange gain on transiation of net financial liabilities.




2014 2013

Effect on profit for the year —— Rupees in "000 ~—-

Yen to Rupee 8,166 5,281

US. § to Rupee (15) 296

RMB to Rupee 3,272 7,259
12,423 12,836

{b) Interast rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Majority of the Interest rate risk of the Group arises from short & long term borrowings from banks, short
term investment and balances held with banks. At the reporting date the profile of the Group's interest
bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2014 2013

Financial asset - fixed rate instruments — Rupees in ‘000 -—-
Short term investment 38,000 -
Bank balance 64,298 9,917

102,298 2917
Financial Liabllities - variable rate instruments
Lizbillties against assets subject to finance lease 16,662 1,260
Short téerm finances 448 861 134,592
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 54,380 179,419

519,903 315,271

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrumeants

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and llablliities at fair value through profit or
loss. Therefore, a change in Interest rates at the reporting date would not affect materlally profit for the
year,

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis point In interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) / Increased
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumed that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013,

Increase (Decrease)
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilites — Rupees in ‘000 —
As at June 30, 2014 5,199 (5,199)
As at June 30, 2013 3,153 (3,153)
—_—

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
liabllities of the Group.
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[c) Price risk

Price risk Is the risk that fair value or future cash flows from a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market prices [other than those arising from Interest rate risk or currency risk). Whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial Instrument or its Issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at June 30, 2014 / 2013 the Group did
not have any financial instruments dependent on market prices,

42.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabllity settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

As at June 30, 2014 the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilitles reflected in the consolidated
financlal statements approximate to thelr fair values except investment In an Assoclated Company which
is valued under equity method of accounting. Further, staff loans are valued at their original cost less

regayments.
43, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's prime objective when managing caplital Is to safeguard Its ability to continue as a going
concern 5o that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to It
in the light of changes In economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or Issue new shares. There was no
change to the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

44, DPERATING SEGMENTS
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

(a) All non-current assets of the Group at June 30, 2014 are |ocated In Pakistan.
(b) 98.71% [2013: 100%) of the Group's sales relate to customers in Pakistan.

{e) The Group has sarned revenue from one customer amounting Rs.633.197 million (2013: Rs.Nil)
during the year which constituted 24.17% (2013: Nil) of the total sales.

45, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2014 2013
Number of employees as at June 30,
- Permanent 227 223
- Contractual 231 381

Average number of employees during the year

- Permanent 232

226
- Contractual 230 n

46. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

451 The Holding Company operates a recognised provident fund for all its permanent employees. The
following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Holding Company's Fund far the
year ended June 30, 2014;
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2014 2013

— Rupees in ‘000 —

Size of the Fund - total assets 63,621 55,066
Cost of investments made 60,050 51,667
Percentage of investments made 594.39% 93.83%
Fair value of Investments 69,641 55,730
Break-up of the investments is as follows:

2014 2013 2014 2013

—- Percentage — — Rupees in 000 —
Bank deposits 174 165 1,105 1,461
Government securities 78.94 77.12 50,220 47 465
Mational Investment Trust - units ian 14.06 8,725 7,741

Imnvestments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financlal statements were authorised for issue on September 24, 2014 by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on September 24, 2014 have
proposed final cash dividend of Rs.2.00 per share, amounting to Rs.90.005 miilion, for the year ended June
30, 2014. The proposed dividend will be approved in the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on October 28, 2014.

These financlal statements do not reflect the proposed dividend, which will be accounted for In the
staternent of changes in equlty as appropriation from unappropriated profit in year ending June 30, 2015,

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Priar year's figures have been restated consequent to the retrospective application of 1AS 19 (Revised) as
more fully explained in note 5. For the purpose of better presentation following corresponding figures
have also been re-arranged / reclassified:

Re-classification from Re-classification to ]
component component - e -
Loans and advances Long term loans 9 1,223
Other receivables Deposits and prepayments 15 3,07
Ahmed Kull Khan Khattak Jamil A, Shah
Chief Executive Director

Karachi ; 24 September 2014
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Form of Proxy

1/ We

of being

a member{s) of Ghandhara Nissan Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No./CDC Participant’s ID and Account No.

hereby appoint

of

or failing him/her of

who is

also member of Ghandhara Nissan Limited vide Registered Folio No./CDC Participant’s D and

Account No. as may/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the

32" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, the 28" October 2014

at 10:30 A.M. and any adjournment thereof.

AFFIX
REVENUE

Signed this day of 2014, STAMP

Rs.5/-
Signature
Witness: Witness:
Name with Name with
NIC No.: NIC No.:
Address: Address:

IMPORTANT:
1. This form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Company’s Registered office Ghandhara House,
109/2, Clifton, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. AProxy should also be a member of the Company.

3. CDC Shareholders and their Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their National Identity Card
or Passport with this Praxy Form.
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